## Maryland Workers' Compensation Commission Meeting Minutes Thursday, January 9, 2020

Call to Order: Acting Chairperson Maureen Quinn called the meeting to order at 9:33 a.m.

**Present:** Acting Chairperson Quinn and Commissioners Kathleen Evans, James Forrester, Allan Kittleman, Morrisann Martin, Howard Metz, Ju Oh, Delia Schadt and Tracey Parker-Warren.

Staff members attending were Jerome Reichmister, M.D, Scott Curtis, Assistant Attorney General, Mary Ahearn, Chief Executive Officer, Steven Jones, Director of Insurance, Compliance & Reporting, Amy Lackington and Stacey L. Roig, Secretary.

**Approval of Minutes:** The Minutes of the December 19, 2019 Commission meeting were reviewed and, upon motion of Commissioner Metz and second of Commissioner Forrester, the Minutes were approved with a unanimous vote.

**Chairman's Report:** Acting Chairperson Quinn reported that the Chairman is attending a SAWCA meeting. She also reported that the 2020 General Assembly is now in session in Annapolis.

Closed Session: At 9:34 a.m., upon motion of Commissioner Parker-Warren and second of Commissioner Metz and upon unanimous vote, pursuant to GP §§3-305(13), LE §§9-402, 9-403, 9-405, 9-406 and 9-1104, and COMAR 14.09.13.12, the Commission entered a closed session for the purpose of discussing self-insured employers' financial information.

**IC & R Report:** Steven Jones reported on behalf of the Insurance, Compliance and Reporting Division that Montgomery General Hospital requires an increase in security deposit. The matter was discussed, and upon motion of Commissioner Parker-Warren seconded by Commissioner Evans, the increase in security deposit was approved.

At a previous meeting, Mr. Jones reported that Coca Cola Refreshments USA, Inc. requested a decrease in security deposit. The matter was further discussed along with the status of claims filed with the Commission and, upon motion of Commissioner Forrester seconded by Commissioner Parker-Warren, the decrease in security deposit was denied.

# The meeting was reopened at 9:47 a.m., upon motion of Commissioner Evans and second of Commissioner Martin and upon unanimous vote.

**Old Business:** Assistant Attorney General, H. Scott Curtis presented COMAR 14.09.13.07 – Individual Employer Self-Insurer – Excess Insurance for final approval. After a brief discussion and a motion by Commissioner Forrester and a second by Commissioner Martin, COMAR 14.09.13.07 was approved.

**New Business:** Commissioner Kittleman discussed a Circuit Court decision regarding an attorney fee for a lump sum advance. Scott Curtis will look into the matter

The Commissioners discussed attorneys refusing to represent claimants where the claim has become a medical only claim.

Mary Ahearn discussed programming for the new system regarding the latest date that Issues can be filed before a hearing. The Commissioners agreed that it is not a problem if the issues are filed right up to the hearing date. The Commissioners preferred the discretion to decide on all the issues at the hearing.

The Commissioners also discussed disfigurement cases where the disfigurement is below the shoulders on a woman or below the waist on a man.

Commissioner Parker-Warren requested that the Commissioners be watchful of their language because some of the Assistants have expressed their discomfort with foul language.

**Medical Alerts:** Dr. Reichmister discussed several medical alerts of interest to the Commissioners and led a detailed discussion of the knee and common knee injuries.

**Adjournment:** Upon a motion by Commissioner Forrester and second by Commissioner Evans and upon unanimous vote, the meeting was adjourned at 10:47 a.m.

Maureen Quinn, Acting Chairperson

## Maryland Workers' Compensation Commission Meeting Minutes Thursday, January 23, 2020

Call to Order: Chairman R. Karl Aumann called the meeting to order at 9:34 a.m.

**Present:** Chairman Aumann and Commissioners Kathleen Evans, James Forrester, Allan Kittleman, Morrisann Martin, Howard Metz, Ju Oh, Maureen Quinn, Delia Schadt and Tracey Parker-Warren.

Staff members attending were Scott Curtis, Mary Ahearn, Amy Lackington, Steven Jones and Stacey L. Roig, Secretary of the Commission.

**Approval of Minutes:** The Minutes of the January 9, 2019 Commission meeting were reviewed and, upon motion of Commissioner Evans and second of Commissioner Martin, the Minutes were approved with a unanimous vote.

**Chairman's Report:** Chairman Aumann reported to the Commissioners that the House budget meeting is complete and went very well. There were questions about some audit items and how the Commission had addressed them. The Senate budget hearing is January 24, 2020. The legislative session includes several Public Information Act bills this year, which we are monitoring. One of the bills in particular has created stir among most state agencies because it severely cuts the response time from 30 days to 7 days. The Uninsured Employers Fund (UEF) has entered a bill to allow it to increase its own rates. The Commission is also monitoring that bill. The Chairman also reported that SAWCA is changing its Summer 2020 Conference location due to a large construction project at the prior location.

Closed Session: At 9:49 a.m., upon motion of Commissioner Quinn and second of Commissioner Evans and upon unanimous vote, pursuant to GP §§3-305(13), LE §§9-402, 9-403, 9-405, 9-406 and 9-1104, and COMAR 14.09.13.12, the Commission entered a closed session for the purpose of discussing self-insured employers' financial information.

**IC & R Report:** Steven Jones reported on behalf of the Insurance, Compliance and Reporting Division that Hebrew Home of Greater Washington requires an increase in security deposit. The matter was discussed, and upon motion of Commissioner Quinn seconded by Commissioner Forrester, the increase in security deposit was approved.

At a previous meeting, Mr. Jones reported that Coca Cola Refreshments USA, Inc. requested a decrease in security deposit. The matter was further discussed along with the status of claims filed with the Commission and, upon motion of Commissioner Forrester seconded by Commissioner Parker-Warren, the decrease in security deposit was denied.

# The meeting was reopened at 9:54 a.m., upon motion of Commissioner Parker-Warren and second of Commissioner Martin and upon unanimous vote.

**Old Business:** Assistant Attorney General, H. Scott Curtis presented the following changes to Regulations for final approval: COMAR 14.09.08. 01 – Guide of Medical and Surgical Fees – Definitions COMAR 14.09.08.02 – Guide of Medical and Surgical Fees – Incorporation by Reference COMAR 14.09.12.02 – Responsibilities of Insurers – Notices of Cancellations After a brief discussion and a motion by Commissioner Evans and a second by Commissioner Parker-Warren, the changes were approved.

**New Business:** Commissioner Parker-Warren reported that she received an angry voice mail message from a claimant.

**Medical Alerts:** On behalf of Dr. Reichmister, Stacey Roig presented an article from JAMA on medical cannabis.

The Chairman reminded the Commissioners that a bowling event for the benefit of Kids' Chance Maryland will take place on Wednesday evening, February 26, 2020 at Bowlero in Timonium. He asked that all Commissioners please plan to attend.

**Adjournment:** Upon a motion by Commissioner Forrester and second by Commissioner Quinn and upon unanimous vote, the meeting was adjourned at 10:42 a.m.

R. Karl Aumann, Chairman

## Maryland Workers' Compensation Commission Meeting Minutes Thursday, February 13, 2020

Call to Order: Chairman R. Karl Aumann called the meeting to order at 9:33 a.m.

**Present:** Chairman Aumann and Commissioners Kathleen Evans, James Forrester, Allan Kittleman, Howard Metz, Ju Oh, Maureen Quinn, Delia Schadt and Tracey Parker-Warren.

Staff members attending were Scott Curtis, Amy Lackington, Steven Jones and Stacey L. Roig, Secretary of the Commission.

**Approval of Minutes:** The Minutes of the January 23, 2019 Commission meeting were reviewed and, upon motion of Commissioner Quinn and second of Commissioner Evans, the Minutes were approved with a unanimous vote.

**Chairman's Report:** Chairman Aumann reported to the Commissioners that SAWCA's Annual Convention, originally scheduled for St. Petersburg, has been moved to Amelia Island due to excessive construction at the St. Petersburg hotel. The dates will remain the same. The proposed legislation giving the Uninsured Employers' Fund ("UEF") authority to raise the assessment rate, had a hearing with a lot of testimony. The Workers' Compensation Oversight Committee will meet to discuss the options. The Chairman also reminded the Commissioners that the Executive Nominations Committee hearings for Commissioner Oh and Commissioner Martin will be February 17<sup>th</sup> and February 24<sup>th</sup>, respectively. The Hearings are held at 5:00pm on the 4<sup>th</sup> floor of the Miller Office Building. The Senate hearing is the finalization of their appointments to the Commission. The Chairman announced that the backlog numbers are excellent, specifically 30 days is at an all-time low.

Closed Session: At 9:56 a.m., upon motion of Commissioner Quinn and second of Commissioner Forrester and upon unanimous vote, pursuant to GP §§3-305(7) and (13), LE §§9-402, 9-403, 9-405, 9-406 and 9-1104, and COMAR 14.09.13.12, the Commission entered a closed session for the purpose of discussing self-insured employers' financial information and advice of Counsel.

**IC & R Report:** Steven Jones reported on behalf of the Insurance, Compliance and Reporting Division that Reconserve of Maryland, Inc. has requested a release of their security deposit. The matter was discussed with advice of Counsel and, upon motion of Commissioner Quinn seconded by Commissioner Evans, the motion was approved.

# The meeting was reopened at 10:04 a.m., upon motion of Commissioner Quinn and second of Commissioner Forrester and upon unanimous vote.

**Old Business:** Scott Curtis discussed a Settlement Agreement that was approved by the Commission containing language that exempted the uninsured employer from any additional fines or penalties after the date of the settlement. Mr. Curtis reminded the Commissioners that we allow attorneys to structure their settlement agreements uniquely to their cases; however, Commissioners must consider how individualized agreements may impact future actions by the Commission because once the agreement has been approved by a Commissioner, the Commission is also bound by the terms that were approved. In this case, no further employer compliance action could be taken against the uninsured employer. Commissioner Parker-Warren provided an update on the angry claimant phone call that she reported in January. A police report was filed and a Peace Order was requested.

Commissioner Forrester presented a special Order to be issued with regard to the Bethlehem Steel hearing aid questions. Commissioner Forrester also requested that all claims under this special Order be specially labeled as "S" claims, i.e. "S123456" so that they are a group and easily identified. Commissioner Forrester will be assigned all of the special "S" claims.

**New Business:** Scott Curtis presented proposed Regulation changes to prepare for the expected changes with CompHub and other Enterprise Modernization changes. The proposed changes would impact COMAR 14.09.01.01, 14.09.01.02. 14.09.01.04, 14.09.01.09, 14.09.02.02, 14.09.04.01

Amy Lackington presented information on hearing status codes for Pass for Settlement and Pass for Stipulation. The consensus of the Chairman and all of the Commissioners is to continue to use code "PSTL" when it is a Pass for Settlement or Stipulation situation at the hearing.

Commissioner Parker-Warren mentioned that some of the date stamps used by the Court Reporters are still 2019.

Commissioner Schadt discussed appeals and the process of taking action without receiving the Coversheet for Action on Claims on Appeal from the attorneys. Commissioner Schadt will present this at the Breakfast with the Commissioners in September.

Commissioner Kittleman discussed an appeal of a denial of a fee on an advance. The Circuit Court has remanded it to the Commission to issue an order to pay the advance and the fee.

**Medical Alerts:** On behalf of Dr. Reichmister, Stacey Roig presented an article from JAMA on Ketogenetic "Keto" Diets.

**Adjournment:** Upon a motion by Commissioner Forrester and second by Commissioner Evans and upon unanimous vote, the meeting was adjourned at 11:00 a.m.

R. Karl Aumann, Chairman

## Maryland Workers' Compensation Commission Meeting Minutes Thursday, February 27, 2020

Call to Order: Chairman R. Karl Aumann called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m.

**Present:** Chairman Aumann and Commissioners Kathleen Evans, James Forrester, Allan Kittleman, Morrisann Martin, Howard Metz, Ju Oh, Maureen Quinn, Delia Schadt and Tracey Parker-Warren.

Staff members attending were Scott Curtis, Jerome Reichmister, M.D., Amy Lackington, Mary Ahearn and Stacey L. Roig, Secretary of the Commission.

**Approval of Minutes:** The Minutes of the February 13, 2019 Commission meeting were reviewed and, upon motion of Commissioner Forrester and second of Commissioner Quinn, the Minutes were approved with a unanimous vote.

**Chairman's Report:** Chairman Aumann thanked the Commissioners for participating in the Kids' Chance Bowling Event on February 26, 2020. The event was very successful. The Executive Nominations Committee Hearings are complete for all new Commissioners and Commissioners Oh and Martin have been approved. The Legislative session is very busy right now with a few bills of some concern, including several bills that propose unpopular changes to the Public Information Act. Discussions continue with the Uninsured Employers' Fund assessment bill. There is also some "medical only" attorney fee legislation that is raising some interesting questions. The Chairman reminded the Commissioners to review the SAWCA program, which was recently released to the SAWCA website. The program appears to be very productive.

## Old Business: No Report

**New Business:** Discussion was held regarding the Bethlehem Steel hearing loss cases and how to identify them so that they are all heard before the same Commissioner. It was determined that all Bethlehem Steel settlements will be routed to Commissioner Forrester. Attorneys are to use the Extraordinary Fee form to explain their fee.

Commissioner Quinn discussed a settlement with a Medicare Set Aside ("MSA") that seemed to be an incorrect amount.

Commissioner Parker-Warren discussed the perpetual late arrival of an attorney that, in her opinion, has reached the point of abusiveness. Chairman Aumann suggested discussing tardiness, continuances at the last minute and other similar behavior at the Breakfast with the Commissioners at the MWCEA Convention in September.

Commissioner Forrester discussed the filing of C51s prematurely by billing companies causing a hearing to be set and the process regarding the withdrawal of medical claims.

Commissioner Schadt discussed "25 Things Judges Should Remember", a handout provided by the Court Reporters as a reminder of their role in the hearing room and some of the challenges that they face during hearings.

Medical Alerts: Dr. Reichmister discussed several medical alerts of interest to the Commissioners.

**Adjournment:** Upon a motion by Commissioner Forrester and second by Commissioner Evans and upon unanimous vote, the meeting was adjourned at 10:35 a.m.

R. Karl Aumann, Chairman

## Maryland Workers' Compensation Commission Meeting Minutes Thursday, March 12, 2020

Call to Order: Chairman R. Karl Aumann called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m.

**Present:** Chairman Aumann and Commissioners Kathleen Evans, James Forrester, Allan Kittleman, Morrisann Martin, Howard Metz, Ju Oh, Maureen Quinn, Delia Schadt and Tracey Parker-Warren.

Staff members attending were Scott Curtis, Jerome Reichmister, M.D., Amy Lackington, Mary Ahearn and Stacey L. Roig, Secretary of the Commission.

**Approval of Minutes:** The Minutes of the February 27, 2020 Commission meeting were reviewed and, upon motion of Commissioner Quinn and second of Commissioner Martin, the Minutes were approved with a unanimous vote.

**Chairman's Report:** Chairman Aumann reported that all out of state travel has been suspended for all state employees until further notice. The American Bar Association meetings have been cancelled and the IAIABC may also cancel their meetings in April. The Governor has instituted a Level II Emergency, which will mean teleworking for those who can and relaxed leave policies for those who are sick or must care for someone who is sick. Scott Curtis, Counsel to the Commission is talking to the MD Judiciary to find out their plans regarding hearings and trials. The Commission may follow their decision with guidance from the Governor's office. The Chairman asked the Commissioners to grant continuances whenever requested due to illness or concerns about coronavirus. In addition, rearrange the hearing rooms to allow for social distancing and request that anyone with a cough leave the room. Hand washing is very important, especially with hand sanitizer in short supply. The situation is fluid, please be flexible and tailor your opening remarks to the current situation as it is at that time.

The Chairman also discussed a possible compromise bill for medical only attorney fees, which would leave the award of a fee at the discretion of the Commission, up to \$2,000. There are no specifics on who pays the fee or other guidelines for determining the amount of the fee. It appears that one of the PIA bills will not be moving forward in this session.

The Chairman gave an update on the two Assistant positions in the Hearing Division.

The Chairman asked all of the Commissioners to please keep their phones with them and turned on at all times because most communications will be coming in the form of text messaging because it is typically seen and responded to faster than email.

**Old Business:** Commissioner Forrester opened a discussion on LE § 10-314(5) Hearing Loss Claims for Retirees, which specifically addresses the Bethlehem Steel hearing loss cases.

Closed Session: At 10:11 a.m., upon motion of Commissioner Forrester and second of Commissioner Evans and upon unanimous vote, pursuant to GP §3-305(7), the Commission entered a closed session for the purpose of advice of Counsel.

**Old Business, continued:** Scott Curtis, Counsel to the Commission provided advice to the Commissioners regarding the hearing loss cases.

**New Business:** The meeting remained closed for additional advice of Counsel regarding emergency procedures given the current situation with coronavirus.

# The meeting was reopened at 10:26 a.m., upon motion of Commissioner Forrester and second of Commissioner Evans and upon unanimous vote.

Commissioner Parker-Warren made a motion to adopt the emergency regulations and permanent regulations as presented by Scott Curtis, Counsel to the Commission. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Forrester and, after a unanimous vote, the motion was approved. The emergency regulations will be posted to the MD Register.

**New Business, continued:** Mary Ahearn reported that no Settlement template was being considered in the new system; however, a new Settlement Worksheet was being developed and now is the time to make any changes. Commissioner Kittleman agreed to collect the suggestions of the Commissioners and when he has consensus, send them to Mary for development with the Enterprise Modernization team. Stacey Roig will also make any updates to the online Adobe form for use immediately. Mary Ahearn also asked all of the Commissioners to please remember to sign-off on every computer they use, including the Regional Sites. The Commission will begin a policy to push off those who remain logged in, very Monday at 4:00 am, which could impact the log-in the next time they are trying to log-in to the system. Logging off is important to allow IT to run necessary updates at night or early morning.

The Chairman discussed attorney fees and making changes to the current structure, perhaps a flat fee structure. He asked Commissioner Metz to work with Scott Curtis to develop ideas for structuring attorney fees. He asked all of the Commissioners to share their thoughts and ideas with either Commissioner Metz or Mr. Curtis.

Commissioner Quinn discussed a settlement where the claimant had a loan against the expected proceeds of the settlement and the lender wanted the order to include payoff of the loan. The Commissioners agreed that the settlement proceeds go to the Claimant and it is up to them to pay their loan amount due.

Medical Alerts: Dr. Reichmister discussed several medical alerts of interest to the Commissioners.

**Adjournment:** Upon a motion by Commissioner Forrester and second by Commissioner Kittleman and upon unanimous vote, the meeting was adjourned at 11:20 a.m.

R. Karl Aumann, Chairman

## Maryland Workers' Compensation Commission Special Meeting Minutes Thursday, March 17, 2020

Call to Order: Chairman R. Karl Aumann called the meeting to order at 11:00 a.m.

**Present:** Chairman Aumann and Commissioners Kathleen Evans, James Forrester, Allan Kittleman, Morrisann Martin, Howard Metz, Ju Oh, Maureen Quinn, Delia Schadt and Tracey Parker-Warren

Staff members attending were Stacey L. Roig, Secretary, Scott Curtis, Amy Lackington, and Mary Ahearn

**Public Guests:** Byron Warnken on behalf of the MD Association for Justice and the Warnken Law firm on speakerphone in the firm's conference room, Sheryl Tirocchi, Matthew Tidball; Andrew Mazan; Lorraine Brooks and Tom Dolina

**Chairman's Report:** Chairman Aumann opened the meeting with a reminder to all guests that this is a special meeting of the Commissioners and, as with all Commissioners' meetings, guests are permitted only to listen unless asked to speak by the Chairman. The Chairman reported that all Hearings are postponed under the guidance of the Judiciary and the Office of the Governor until April 3, 2020. Modified work is in place at the Commission with about 10 staff on site for parts of the day to open mail. scan documents, etc. Indexing is being done at home through telework, as are most other duties. The Public Service group is rotating one person on site to answer phones and there are two Commissioner Assistants on site for printing and hands-on work that must be done on site. The IT Helpdesk has one person on site in Baltimore. All of this was put into effect to help cut down on the amount of personal contact and hopefully, flatten the line. The Chairman stated that it was difficult to make the decision to postpone hearings because of the impact that it would have on injured workers waiting for their case to be heard. The Commission has set two dockets on Monday, March 23, 2020 that will only include cases that had been previously set for emergency hearings between March 16<sup>th</sup> and April 3<sup>rd</sup>. The two dockets will be held in Baltimore and Beltsville. The Commissioner Assistants are contacting the parties to confirm the need to proceed with the EMR and to notify the parties of the special dockets. Commissioner Metz will take the Beltsville docket and Commissioner Kittleman will take the Baltimore docket. The hearings are scheduled in 20 minute intervals and the parties are being directed to arrive on time, not early, and to leave immediately following their hearing. The Chairman also reminded the Commissioners to please watch their Oueue work, especially settlements and emergency hearing requests. Termination of Temporary Total Disability benefits may be put on hold by some insurers temporarily. The Commission will continue to monitor the workload and keep on site personnel to a minimum. Mission critical people are handling as much as possible to keep the backlog to a minimum when we return to full operations. Subpoenas and settlements can still be mailed to Baltimore for stamping and scanning to the system for Commissioner review. Some of the work is not telework friendly and those who cannot telework are being paid administrative leave. Workers on site are being given a premium of pay two times hourly for every hour worked or compensable time for every hour worked for exempt employees. The Chairman is participating in a daily call with the Governor's Office. The Commission is operating smoothly and keeping things moving.

Amy Lackington reported on behalf of Mary Ahearn that the Commission is addressing issues as they arise. The Department Heads are meeting on a conference call with Mary Ahearn each morning.

James Lanier, attorney with the Warnken Firm, asked if the Commissioners would take questions from the guests. The Chairman answered the following questions:

- 1. What will be the time for the special dockets on March  $23^{rd}$ ?
  - A. Hearings will begin at 9:00 am and run every 20 minutes thereafter until the docket is complete.
- If a regularly scheduled hearing, that was scheduled to occur between March 16 and April 3<sup>rd</sup>, has been cancelled, may the attorneys refile as Emergency Hearing?
   A. Yes
- 3. Which insurers are considering a 30 day moratorium on terminating TTD?
  - A. The Chairman was not at liberty to say as the information is general and not specific.
- 4. Will Vocational Rehabilitation requests be handled any differently than usual?A. No. Voc Rehab requests should be processed as you usually do it.
- 5. Is there anything that was said at this meeting that cannot be repeated?
  - A. No, this is an Open Meeting and the Minutes will be posted to our website as all Commissioners' Meeting Minutes are posted now.

Byron Warnken asked to comment and Chairman Aumann asked him to proceed. Mr. Warnken thanked all of the Commissioners who were participating in an event on Thursday, March 19<sup>th</sup>, for their support; however, the event would not be going forward at this point. The Commissioners will be notified if it is to be rescheduled.

Mary Ahearn joined the call and Chairman Aumann asked if she had any information to share on the call. Ms. Ahearn reported that in spite of some hiccups, the first day of modified working had been smooth. The mail load was particularly heavy but was being processed as quickly as possible. She commented that the Department Heads will be having regular staff meetings via teleconference to keep everyone up to date.

Commissioner Quinn asked if the Chairman anticipated hearings every Monday in Baltimore and Beltsville, The Chairman answered that the situation was flexible right now and he would continue to assess the situation depending on the need to do more in the future. Any future hearings will be set manually and all parties notified by the Commission.

**Adjournment:** There being no further questions or comments, the Chairman adjourned the meeting at 11:30 a.m.

R. Karl Aumann, Chairman

## Maryland Workers' Compensation Commission Special Meeting Minutes Tuesday April 7, 2020

Call to Order: Chairman R. Karl Aumann called the meeting to order at 11:02 a.m.

**Present:** Chairman Aumann and Commissioners Kathleen Evans, James Forrester, Allan Kittleman, Morrisann Martin, Howard Metz, Ju Oh, Maureen Quinn, Delia Schadt and Tracey Parker-Warren

Staff members attending were Stacey L. Roig, Secretary, Scott Curtis, Amy Lackington, and Mary Ahearn

Public Guests: Please see attached list of public guests attending the meeting via telephone.

Chairman Aumann opened the meeting with a reminder to all guests that this is a special meeting of the Commissioners and, as with all Commissioners' meetings going forward for the near future, guests are permitted only to listen unless asked to speak by the Chairman. Please send any questions or comments to the Secretary of the Commission and they will be forwarded to the appropriate party. The Chairman reported that Beth Richard, a member of the Personnel Office, has taken a position with another state agency and is leaving the Commission. It is a great opportunity for her. The Chairman also reported that retired Commissioner Mirglia's father passed away last week and will be buried at Arlington National Cemetery. Finally, the Chairman reported that a retired employee of the Commission, Yolanda Cheatham, has been ill and we are pleased to report a miraculous recovery is underway.

**Approval of Minutes:** The Minutes of the March 12, 2020 Commission meeting were reviewed and, upon motion of Commissioner Quinn and second of Commissioner Evans, the Minutes were approved with a unanimous vote.

The Minutes of the March 17, 2020 Special COVID-19 Commission meeting were reviewed and, upon motion of Commissioner Forrester and second of Commissioner Martin, the Minutes were approved with a unanimous vote.

Chairman's Report: The Chairman reported that all Hearings are postponed under the guidance of the Judiciary and the Office of the Governor until May 6, 2020. There are now approximately 15 staff members in the office, practicing social distancing. There is a new process for entering the building, which is required be followed by all who enter the building. Given these new procedures, the double time payment to onsite staff members has ceased. The work of the Commission is getting done and, although growing, the list of cases to be set is still manageable. There are now 8,000 cases to be set, of which 1,300 are over 30 days. While we would prefer that the number be lower, we have seen worse over the years and managed the backlog. No cases are set beyond May 18<sup>th</sup> so we should be able to address the backlog quickly. The Commission is considering morning and afternoon dockets, depending on the backlog at the time that we go back to a full schedule of hearings. Our success depends on the full contingent of ten Commissioners taking full dockets. The Commission is also considering telephonic hearings for special cases, if all parties agree to a telephonic hearing. The Chairman also reported that the IAIABC has decided to host a Committees Week in lieu of the Spring Forum, which was canceled due to COVID-19. The Dispute Resolution Committee will meet on Monday, April 27<sup>th</sup> from 12-2pm; Medical Issues will meet on Tuesday, March 28th and the Regulation Committee will meet on Wednesday, March 29th from 3:00-4:30pm. The Chairman asked the Commissioners to put this on their calendars and plan to participate. The Chairman also reported that the Ethics filings due April 30<sup>th</sup> have not been extended. He

reminded the Commissioners that this is required every year and the deadline remains at April 30<sup>th</sup>. Finally, the Chairman reported that Megan McLaughlin, a second year law student, will be interning at the Commission this summer.

The Chairman asked Mary Ahearn to provide an update on the CompHub progress. Ms. Ahearn announced a Lunch & Learn at the MWCEA Convention in September. It will be held on Tuesday, September 22, 2020.

The Chairman asked Scott Curtis to update the Commissioners on a recent Court of Appeals decision regarding workers compensation and retirement in the case of *Harford Co. v Gary*.

## Old Business: No Report

**New Business:** Commissioner Forrester discussed hearing dates and subpoenas being issued without dates and locations available. Commissioner Kittleman discussed telephonic IME's and IME's by video and how to handle disagreements between the parties. Commissioner Forrester expressed some concerns with validity when the doctor does not actually see and touch the patient. There is also some concern with Employers and Insurers having to pay for IME's that may or may not be admitted as evidence. Commissioner Metz discussed the number of settlements that are coming through for the same claimant and are being assigned to different Commissioners. Mary Ahearn will address the situation with the Commissioner Assistants.

**Adjournment:** There being no further questions or comments, and upon a motion by Commissioner Forrester and a second of Commissioner Quinn and a unanimous vote, the meeting was adjourned at 11:04 a.m.

R. Karl Aumann, Chairman

Name	Law Firm, Company or Other Affiliation
Sean E. Smith, Associate	Ashcraft & Gerel, LLP
Robert N. Daniels, Esq.	Law Office of Robert N. Daniels
Carrie Reiber	MES Solutions
Jim Lanier	Warnken, LLC
Blaine M. Kolker, Esq.	Silver Kolker LLP
Jessica Baumgartner	University of Maryland, Faculty Physicians Inc.
Marc J. Hassan, Esq.	Hassan, Hassan & Tuchman, P.A.
Ashley Bond, Esquire	Rollins, Smalkin, Richards & Mackie, L.L.C.
Paul G. Donoghue	Rollins, Smalkin, Richards & Mackie, L.L.C.
April LeVan   Claims Manager	CorVel Corporation   Baltimore
Christopher F. Murphy, Attorney	Albert, Schreyer, Poe, LLC
Erinn F. Grzech, Principal	Semmes
Cindy L. Armstrong, Esquire	Erlandson, Vernon & Daney, LLC
Michael LaFontaine, Esq.	Cohen, Snyder, Eisenberg & Katzenberg P.A.
Andrew T. Nichols, Esquire	Horman Nichols, LLC
Joyce Pineda	Aurora Case Management
Tom Falcinelli	ILF
Michelle D. Mtimet	Zauner & Mtimet, P.A.
Jeff Horowitz, Esquire	Belsky, Weinberg & Horowitz. LLC
Sheryl A. Tirocchi, Esquire	GodwinTirocchi, LLC

Name	Law Firm, Company or Other Affiliation
Suzanne T. Berger	Baltimore County Office of Law
Gretchen Rogers, Esq.	Berman, Sobin, Gross, Feldman & Darby
Alicyn C. Campbell, Esq.	Rollins, Smalkin, Richards & Mackie, L.L.C.
Danny Tanner	Aurora Case Management
Brooke Thompson, Paralegal	Albert, Schreyer, Poe, LLC
Jodi L. Taylor, Esq., CMSP, WCP®	IWIF/Chesapeake Employers' Insurance Company
John Proctor	Proctor Law
Amy Ritz I Claims Supervisor	CorVel Corporation   Baltimore
Theresa M Brennan	CorVel Corporation   Baltimore
Suja M. Varghese, Assistant County Attorney	Baltimore County Office of Law
Angela Wiley-Jones	Montgomery County Self Insurance Program, Division of Risk Management
Jonathan Beiser	Beiser Law Firm
Steven J. Sturm, Esq.	Anne Hoke Attorneys
Wendy B. Karpel	Office of the Montgomery County Attorney
Pearl B. Monroe	MC Innovations, LLC
Lissa H. Bales   Claims Manager	Montgomery County Self Insurance Program   Division of Risk Management
Ben M. Brooks, Esq.	Brooks Law Firm
Matt Trollinger, Esq.	Trollinger Law
Neydyn S. Gomez, Esq.	Antezana & Antezana, LLC
Benjamin H. Seider, Esq.	Goldberg Segalla

Name	Law Firm, Company or Other Affiliation
Robert G. Samet, Esq.	Ashcraft & Gerel, LLP
Mark E. Rollison, Esquire	Engel Law Group, PC
Mark T. Krause	Schenker, Krause & Lopez (employees of Zurich American Insurance)
Antonio R. Lopez	Schenker, Krause & Lopez (employees of Zurich American Insurance)
Byron B. Warnken, Esq.	Warnken, LLC
Andrew Mazan	Warnken, LLC
Rebecca Smith	Warnken, LLC
Allyson Bloom, Esq	Berman, Sobin, Gross, Feldman & Darby
Bob Erlandson, Esq	Erlandson, Vernon & Daney, LLC
John Vernon, Esq	Erlandson, Vernon & Daney, LLC
Michael Daney, Esq	Erlandson, Vernon & Daney, LLC
Kelley Blaisdell	MES Solutions
Lee Tuchman, Esq	Hassan, Hassan & Tuchman, P.A.
Heather Bonney	CorVel Corporation   Baltimore
James Smiley, Esq	Law Offices of Joseph M. Jagielski
Matthew W. Grogan	Warnken, LLC
Matthew S. Tidball, Esq.	GodwinTirocchi, LLC
Honorable ShaRon M. Grayson Kelsey	Prince George's County Circuit Court
Natasha C. Richards	Montgomery County Government
John S. Hashim, Jr.	Benefits Litigation Unit - Baltimore County Government

Name	Law Firm, Company or Other Affiliation
Lorraine Brooks	Bodie Law
Tom Dolina	Bodie Law
Jeffrey S. Stavisky, Esquire	Ezrine, Castro & Stavisky, P.A.
Erin H. Snyder, Esquire	Law Offices of Cohen, Snyder, Eisenberg, and Katzenberg P.A.
Michael Berman, Esq.	Albert, Schreyer, Poe, LLC
Shawna Stevenson	Albert, Schreyer, Poe, LLC
Sara El-Shall, Esq.	Shultz Legal, LLC
Kenneth Gaudreau	The Gaudreau Law Firm
Janice H. Malan	
Matthew J. Peffer	Chasen Boscolo
Charles Schultz, Esq.	Berman, Sobin, Gross, Feldman & Darby
David A. Muncy	Plaxen & Adler, P.A.
Matthew D. Gordon, Esq.	Law Office of Mitchel M. Gordon
Ryan J. Foran	Foran & Foran, P.A.
Michael L. Dailey, Esquire	Schmidt, Dailey & O'Neill, LLC
Matthew S. Farr	Matthew Farr Law
Dan Udoff, Esq.	Kahn, Smith & Collins, P.A.
William P. Konstas, Esq.	Law Office of William P. Konstas
Lisa A. Zelenak	Bonner Kiernan Trebach and Crociata
David Schoenfeld	Bonner Kiernan Trebach and Crociata

## Maryland Workers' Compensation Commission Meeting Minutes Thursday, April 23, 2020

**Call to Order:** Chairman R. Karl Aumann called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m. The Chairman reminded all outside guests who were attending via telephone to please mute their phones and reminded them that this a meeting of the Commissioners and not an open forum for questions, comments, etc.

**Present:** Chairman Aumann and Commissioners Kathleen Evans, James Forrester, Allan Kittleman, Morrisann Martin, Howard Metz, Ju Oh, Maureen Quinn, Delia Schadt and Tracey Parker-Warren. Staff members attending were Scott Curtis, Jerome Reichmister, M.D., Amy Lackington, Mary Ahearn, and Stacey L. Roig, Secretary of the Commission.

**Approval of Minutes:** The Minutes of the April 7, 2020 Special COVID-19 Commission meeting were reviewed and, upon motion of Commissioner Quinn and second of Commissioner Martin, the Minutes were approved with a unanimous vote.

**Chairman's Report:** The Chairman explained the upcoming process of video hearings beginning at around the first week of May. Instructions and details will be posted to the website. The Commission will be using Microsoft Teams for the hearings, which will allow for secure attendance without necessarily requiring a download of the software to participate in the hearing. The Chairman reported that the backlog of cases is now at 10,000 cases with issues pending and almost 3,000 over 30 days. In 2018, the Commission had a similar backlog during the crossover of retiring Commissioners and newly appointed Commissioners and once we had all ten Commissioners, we were able to attack the backlog, we did get it down to under 1,000 in less than two months. We know that it can be done, and the video hearings will help with achieving that goal. The Chairman informed the Commissioners that staff members are still on duty keeping the work moving along. The Department of Budget and Management has issued a directive that no additional purchases of any kind my be made, even if previously budgeted; however, due to the Commission being a specially funded agency, the Chairman has requested a waiver of this directive. We are waiting on a response.

Old Business: No Report

New Business: No Report

**Medical Alerts:** Dr. Reichmister discussed the schedule of training when the COVID-19 restrictions are lifted. He reminded the Commissioners and all in attendance that there are very specific guidelines established for safety during the COVID-19 pandemic. He urged everyone to heed the advice of the professionals and wear masks, clean surfaces, practice social distancing and do not touch your face. The Chairman thanked Dr, Reichmister for his COVID-19 triage service to the community through his work with LifeBridge Health.

**Adjournment:** Upon a motion by Commissioner Forrester and second by Commissioner Evans and upon unanimous vote, the meeting was adjourned at 9:44 a.m.

#### Name

Sean E. Smith, Associate Robert N. Daniels, Esq. Carrie Reiber Jim Lanier Blaine M. Kolker, Esq. Marc J. Hassan, Esq. Ashley Bond, Esquire Paul G. Donoghue April LeVan | Claims Manager Christopher F. Murphy, Attorney Erinn F. Grzech, Principal Cindy L. Armstrong, Esquire Michael LaFontaine, Esq. Andrew T. Nichols, Esquire Joyce Pineda Frank Lipshultz Jeff Horowitz, Esquire Sheryl A. Tirocchi, Esquire Suzanne T. Berger Gretchen Rogers, Esq. Alicyn C. Campbell, Esq. Danny Tanner Brooke Thompson, Paralegal John Proctor Theresa M Brennan Suja M. Varghese, Assistant County Attorney

Angela Wiley-Jones Jonathan Beiser Steven J. Sturm, Esq. Wendy B. Karpel Pearl B. Monroe

Lissa H. Bales | Claims Manager Matt Trollinger, Esq. Neydyn S. Gomez, Esq. Benjamin H. Seider, Esq. Robert G. Samet, Esq. Mark E. Rollison, Esquire

Mark T. Krause

Antonio R. Lopez Byron B. Warnken, Esq. Andrew Mazan Rebecca Smith Bob Erlandson, Esq Michael Daney, Esq Heather Bonney James Smiley, Esq Matthew W. Grogan Honorable ShaRon M. Grayson Kelsey Natasha C. Richards

John S. Hashim, Jr. Lorraine Brooks Tom Dolina Jeffrey S. Stavisky, Esquire

#### Law Firm, Company or Other Affiliation

Ashcraft & Gerel, LLP Law Office of Robert N. Daniels MES Solutions Warnken, LLC Silver Kolker LLP Hassan, Hassan & Tuchman, P.A. Rollins, Smalkin, Richards & Mackie, L.L.C. Rollins, Smalkin, Richards & Mackie, L.L.C. CorVel Corporation | Baltimore Albert, Schreyer, Poe, LLC Semmes Erlandson, Vernon & Daney, LLC Cohen, Snyder, Eisenberg & Katzenberg P.A. Horman Nichols, LLC Aurora Case Management Zauner & Mtimet, P.A. Belsky, Weinberg & Horowitz. LLC GodwinTirocchi, LLC Baltimore County Office of Law Berman, Sobin, Gross, Feldman & Darby Rollins, Smalkin, Richards & Mackie, L.L.C. Aurora Case Management Albert, Schreyer, Poe, LLC Proctor Law CorVel Corporation | Baltimore Baltimore County Office of Law Montgomery County Self Insurance Program, Division of Risk Management **Beiser Law Firm** Anne Hoke Attorneys Office of the Montgomery County Attorney MC Innovations, LLC Montgomery County Self Insurance Program | Division of Risk Management **Trollinger Law** Antezana & Antezana, LLC Goldberg Segalla Ashcraft & Gerel, LLP Engel Law Group, PC

Schenker, Krause & Lopez (employees of Zurich American Insurance)

Schenker, Krause & Lopez (employees of Zurich American Insurance) Warnken, LLC Warnken, LLC Erlandson, Vernon & Daney, LLC Erlandson, Vernon & Daney, LLC CorVel Corporation | Baltimore Law Offices of Joseph M. Jagielski Warnken, LLC Prince George's County Circuit Court Montgomery County Government

Benefits Litigation Unit - Baltimore County Government Bodie Law Bodie Law Ezrine, Castro & Stavisky, P.A.

#### Name

#### Law Firm, Company or Other Affiliation

Erin H. Snyder, Esquire Michael Berman, Esq. Shawna Stevenson Matthew J. Peffer Charles Schultz, Esq. Matthew D. Gordon, Esq. Ryan J. Foran Michael L. Dailey, Esquire Dan Udoff, Esq. Nancy Coursan, Esq. James Simpson, Esq. Craig A Rosenstein Shawn M. Poe Matt Grogan, Esq. Shelby Dubato Danielle E. Marone, Esquire Mark A Buterbaugh Shannon Cressel Dawn Malone Leslie Rice, MS, CRC, CCM, MCRSP, N2507 Samantha Kieley, MA, CRC, CDMS, CCM Janet Dayhoff Carlos A. Nieto Robert L. Frank Gerald F. Gay Timothy E. McLaughlin Gina Laubach, National Accounts Claims Manager Patti Hennessie Steven J. Meltzer Sara El-Shall, Esq. Angela Garcia Kozlowski, Esq Elizabeth D. Cardona, Esq. David K. Stesch Michael Harrison Michael Schaffer Jeffrey Rosenzweig, Esq. Anthonia St. John Jason W. Shultz, Esq. Jeffrey T. Glassman, Esq. LaTonia Redcross Stephan A. Timchula Christopher T. Carroll Matt M. Paavola Theodore M. Ehudin Matt Rogers Erica Fischer Michelle Christian Michele Greenberg Mark E. Korn, Esq. Lance G. Montour Lyndsey Beidle Meninger, Esq. Joan P. Adelman

Joan P. Adeiman Austen E. Cohen, Esq. Paul Rouhana, Esq. Steve Seigel, Esq Sarah O. Rollman Amy Foster

Law Offices of Cohen, Snyder, Eisenberg, and Katzenberg P.A. Albert, Schreyer, Poe, LLC Albert, Schreyer, Poe, LLC Chasen Boscolo Berman, Sobin, Gross, Feldman & Darby Law Office of Mitchel M. Gordon Foran & Foran, P.A. Schmidt, Dailey & O'Neill, LLC Kahn, Smith & Collins, P.A. Dirsk & Levin LLC Jim Simpson for Congress Rensin & Rosenstein, LLP Albert, Schreyer, Poe, LLC Warnken, LLC Malcolm & Associates Schmidt, Dailey & O'Neill, L.L.C. Mooney Law firm **Genex Services** Paradigm Rice Rehab, LLC First Rehabilitation Resources **First Rehabilitation Resources** Semmes Law Offices of Robert Frank Arnold, Sevel and Gay, P. A Humphreys, McLaughlin & McAleer, LLC CorVel Corporation | Baltimore Howard County Government Schenker, Krause & Lopez Shultz Legal, LLC Franklin & Prokopic Bonner Kiernan Uninsured Employers' Fund Uninsured Employers' Fund CorVel Corporation | Baltimore Law Office of Eugene Glazer Prince George's County, Office of Law Shultz Legal, LLC LAW OFFICE OF EUGENE I. GLAZER, LLC Prince George's County Office of Law Timchula & Smith, P.A. Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company Trial Division Workers' Comp Law Firm, LLC Workers' Comp Law Firm, LLC Greenberg Law Offices Greenberg Law Offices Greenberg Law Offices Greenberg Law Offices Law Offices of Mark Elliot Korn, LLC HUMPHREYS, McLAUGHLIN & McALEER, LLC Injured Workers' Insurance Fund | Chesapeake Employers' Insurance Company IWIF/Chesapeake Employers' Insurance Company Seigel & Rouhana, LLC Seigel & Rouhana, LLC Seigel & Rouhana, LLC Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority Maryland-National Capital Park & Planning Commission

## Maryland Workers' Compensation Special Commissioners' Meeting Minutes Tuesday, May 19, 2020

**Call to Order:** Chairman R. Karl Aumann called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. The Chairman reminded all outside guests who were attending via telephone to please mute their phones and reminded them that this a meeting of the Commissioners and not an open forum for questions, comments, etc.

**Present:** Chairman Aumann and Commissioners Kathleen Evans, James Forrester, Allan Kittleman, Morrisann Martin, Howard Metz, Ju Oh, Maureen Quinn, Delia Schadt and Tracey Parker-Warren. Staff members attending were Mary Ahearn, Jerome Reichmister, M.D., Scott Curtis, Amy Lackington, and Stacey L. Roig, Secretary of the Commission.

A list of guests who called in to this Open Meeting is attached to the Minutes.

**Approval of Minutes:** The Minutes of the April 23, 2020 Commissioners' Meeting were reviewed and, upon motion of Commissioner Martin and second of Commissioner Quinn, the Minutes were approved with a unanimous vote.

**Chairman's Report:** The Chairman stated that in-person hearings are expected to resume on June 8, 2020. 1700 cases were entered manually and scheduled for June. The July docket will be set soon. Video hearings will continue for those who request them, with at least one Commissioner per day scheduled to conduct these hearings. There have been about 100 requests for video hearings in May and most are scheduled within 10 days of the request. Emergency hearings are also being handled through video hearings. The workers' compensation community, in general, has done a great job of working together to keep things moving and getting things done. The Chairman also discussed the importance of attending conferences even if they become virtual for the near future. Most of the organizations have cancelled the in-person conferences through 2020 because of the coronavirus threat and travel bans and budget constrains for all jurisdictional and associate member companies and sponsors. The MWCEA Convention in September is still going forward for now. Finally, the Chairman asked that all Commissioners please sign-on and check for the Security Awareness training that is due May 22<sup>nd</sup>. This training is mandatory for all state agencies and everyone must complete it.

### Old Business: No Report

**New Business:** Commissioner Evans asked about evidence exhibits and some difficulty with uploading into the system. Mary Ahearn explained that the website has information on how to split evidence files into smaller files for uploading. Commissioner Quinn asked about the expected daily schedule for cases and the Chairman explained that the earliest case is set for 9:00 am and the latest is set for 2:40pm with a one-hour break scheduled for 12:00 noon until 1:00 pm. Docket sheets will be available soon. Commissioner Quinn also asked about requests for continuances because IME's were previously scheduled for after the hearing date. The Chairman explained that if the continuance is granted, another case is being set in for that hearing date and time. The Commission is trying to get the oldest cases set and done as soon as possible. The Commissioner Quinn also addressed the guests on the call and asked them not to hold a settlement until the last minute, If the plan is to settle, please do so and allow that hearing space to be used by another case, Commissioner Parker-Warren commented that settlements have become somewhat sloppy with worksheets not matching what is in the document and it appears that there is no review process before submission. The Chairman asked that the community please pay attention to quality to help the Commissioners move the settlements along.

**Medical Alerts:** Dr. Reichmister reminded everyone to please be safe, be cautious, wear masks, use frequent hand washing and stay home as much as possible.

**Adjournment:** Upon a motion by Commissioner Forrester and second by Commissioner Evans and upon unanimous vote, the meeting was adjourned at 10:20 a.m.

R. Karl Aumann, Chairman

## Public Attendees to Special COVID-19 Commissioners' Meeting via Teleconference Tuesday, May 19, 2020

Name	Law Firm, Company or Other Affiliation
Cindy L. Armstrong, Esquire	Erlandson, Vernon & Daney, LLC
Gretchen Rogers, Esq.	Berman, Sobin, Gross, Feldman & Darby
Mark E. Rollison, Esquire	Engel Law Group, PC
	Schenker, Krause & Lopez (employees of Zurich
Mark T. Krause	American Insurance)
Neydyn S. Gomez, Esq.	Antezana & Antezana, LLC
Stephan A. Timchula	Timchula & Smith, P.A.
Steven J. Meltzer	Schenker, Krause & Lopez
Suja M. Varghese, Assistant County Attorney	Baltimore County Office of Law
Tina Lane	Mitchell
ELIZABETH A. GUTZWILER, RHIT	Mitchell
Mark F. Grasso	Trazzi & Grasso
Rob N. Weston	Law Offices of Rob N. Weston
Douglas M. Gross, Esq.	LAW OFFICES OF DOUGLAS M. GROSS, LLC
Matt Trollinger, Esq.	Trollinger Law
Sara El-Shall, Esq.	Shultz Legal, LLC

## Maryland Workers' Compensation Special Commissioners' Meeting Minutes Tuesday, June 2, 2020

Call to Order: Chairman R. Karl Aumann called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m.

The Chairman reminded all outside guests who were attending via telephone to please mute their phones and reminded them that this a meeting of the Commissioners and not an open forum for questions, comments, etc.

**Present:** Chairman Aumann and Commissioners Kathleen Evans, James Forrester, Allan Kittleman, Morrisann Martin, Howard Metz, Ju Oh, Maureen Quinn, Delia Schadt and Tracey Parker-Warren. Staff members attending were Mary Ahearn, Jerome Reichmister, M.D., Scott Curtis, Amy Lackington, and Stacey L. Roig, Secretary of the Commission.

A list of guests who called in to this Open Meeting is attached to the Minutes.

**Approval of Minutes:** The Minutes of the May 19, 2020 Commissioners' Meeting were reviewed and, upon motion of Commissioner Martin and second of Commissioner Forrester, the Minutes were approved with a unanimous vote.

**Chairman's Report:** The Chairman stated that in-person hearings are, set to go for June 8, 2020. The transition was smooth to the video hearings and they will continue with at least one Commissioner per day conducting remote video hearings. The Claims Division has been extremely busy, along with the IT Division, getting the hearing notices out to the parties. The Chairman reported that at the height of the hiatus from hearings, there were 10,000 cases that had issues pending and needed hearings with about 7,500 pending over 30 days. As of this meeting date, there are 7,400 cases pending, a 26% reduction and cases still being set to August 2020. The number of cases pending over 30 days is down to 5,800, a 23% reduction. A notice to the Commission website will go up today with instructions for attendees of all inperson hearings in the city so that necessary updates can be run on them. A new form that is required at each hearing is the contact tracing form. It will be the new normal, so the Chairman asked the Commissioners to make it part of their opening at each hearing and make it a habit quickly. It is on the computer and easy to complete but it must be completed at each hearing and must include every person who attends, regardless of their role at the hearing.

The Chairman commented on the protests in Baltimore and the expectation that hearings will continue even as the protests are going on, as they are concentrated around City Hall.

The MWCEA Annual Convention is still scheduled for Ocean City in September. Options will be discussed in the coming weeks with final decisions expected later in June. The IAIABC, SAWCA and NWCJA are all being changed to some form of remote conference to keep the workers' compensation community informed and networked.

Commissioner Forrester asked the Chairman to expand on the contact tracing requirements. The Chairman explained that this is the next stage to flattening the curve of the virus. Everyone in the hearing room must be identified with names and addresses so that they can be traced and contacted if someone tests positive or develops symptoms of coronavirus.

## Old Business: No Report

**New Business:** Commissioner Quinn discussed procedures for reviewing impeachable evidence that is presented at a hearing. She is also reviewing all other exhibits that are submitted 3 days in advance of the hearings, making notes but not printing all the materials. The Commissioners were reminded to keep

their mask on in the hearing room, even while speaking. It will be difficult, but it is meant to protect others as well as themselves. There will be a supply of masks in the hearing rooms, but all parties are encouraged to bring their own. The Security Guards are being trained on sanitizing the rooms between hearings. Gloves are available for staff, but not the public.

Commissioner Evans asked about the Commissioner Assistants and their working status. The Chairman explained that those who can and have been teleworking will continue to do so. The Assistants who were not able to telework will be returning to the office on varied schedules and shorter shifts to keep the number of people on each floor at the approved limits. The Chairman asked all the Commissioners to please be flexible.

**Medical Alerts:** Dr. Reichmister discussed various vaccine trials and certain drugs that have been found to reduce the length of the illness but are not a cure. There are several experimental programs testing different substances to develop new medications. Dr. Reichmister reminded everyone to please be safe, be cautious, wear masks, use frequent hand washing, social distance and stay home as much as possible.

**Adjournment:** Upon a motion by Commissioner Forrester and second by Commissioner Evans and upon unanimous vote, the meeting was adjourned at 10:26 a.m.

R. Karl Aumann, Chairman

## Public Attendees to Commissioners' Meeting Tuesday, June 2, 2020

Name	Law Firm, Company or Other Affiliation
Cindy L. Armstrong, Esquire	Erlandson, Vernon & Daney, LLC
Joan P. Adelman	IWIF/Chesapeake Employers' Insurance Company
John Vernon, Esq	Erlandson, Vernon & Daney, LLC
Lorraine Brooks	Bodie Law
Michael Daney, Esq	Erlandson, Vernon & Daney, LLC
Michael Harrison	Uninsured Employers' Fund
Rob N. Weston	Law Offices of Rob N. Weston
Robert N. Daniels, Esq.	Law Office of Robert N. Daniels
	Employees of a Subsidiary of The Hartford Financial Services Group,
E. Meredith Wolak, Esq.	Inc.

#### **PROPOSED ACTION ON REGULATIONS**

#### Economic Impact on Small Businesses

The proposed action has minimal or no economic impact on small businesses.

#### Impact on Individuals with Disabilities

The proposed action has no impact on individuals with disabilities.

#### **Opportunity for Public Comment**

Comments may be sent to Tracey C. Sheffield, Regulations Coordinator, MVA, 6601 Ritchie Highway N.E., Room 200, Glen Burnie, MD 21062, or call 410-768-7545, or email to tsheffield@mdot.state.md.us, or fax to 410-768-7506. Comments will be accepted through May 26, 2020. A public hearing has not been scheduled.

## Subtitle 11 MOTOR VEHICLE ADMINISTRATION — ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES

### 11.11.05 Motor Vehicle Fees

Authority: Transportation Article, §12-104(b), Annotated Code of Maryland, and as cited in Regulations .02—.06 of this chapter

#### .04 Vehicle Registration Fees.

Section	Fee
11.24	
13-405.1	20

## Subtitle 15 MOTOR VEHICLE ADMINISTRATION — VEHICLE REGISTRATION

### 11.15.37 Temporary In-Transit Registration

Authority: Transportation Article, §§12-104(b) and 13-405.1, Annotated Code of Maryland

#### .01 Purpose.

This chapter establishes the criteria necessary for a nonresident of 16 the State to apply for, and receive, a temporary in-transit registration for purposes of transporting a vehicle purchased in Maryland to the nonresident purchaser's state of residence for titling and registration.

#### .02 Application for Temporary In-Transit Registration.

A. A nonresident of the State who purchases a vehicle in the State and who wishes to transport the purchased vehicle to a jurisdiction outside the State for titling and registration shall apply for a temporary in-transit registration in a format prescribed by the Administration.

B. An applicant for a temporary in-transit registration shall provide the Administration with a completed application, the required fee as set forth in COMAR 11.11.05, and proof of the following, as described in Regulation .04 of this chapter:

(1) Identity;

(2) Residency;

(3) Vehicle ownership; and

(4) Insurance.

*C.* Application for a temporary in-transit registration may be submitted through:

(1) The Administration; or

(2) A licensed title service agent.

#### .03 Period of Validity.

A. A temporary in-transit registration shall: (1) Be valid for a period of 14 days; and

(2) Indicate the expiration date.

B. The Administration or a licensed title service agent may not issue more than one temporary in-transit registration for each vehicle sales transaction.

#### .04 Required Proofs.

A. As proof of identity, an applicant for a temporary in-transit registration shall furnish a valid driver's license.

B. As proof of residency, an applicant for a temporary in-transit registration shall complete a Verification of Residency form furnished by the Administration. The address reflected on the Verification of Residency form shall match the address reflected on the applicant's driver's license.

C. As proof of vehicle ownership, an applicant for a temporary intransit registration shall provide a properly assigned certificate of title or other ownership documentation acceptable to the Administration, as well as a bill of sale. If the vehicle is less than 7 years old, the bill of sale shall be notarized.

D. As proof of insurance, an applicant for a temporary in-transit registration shall provide proof that the vehicle for which the temporary in-transit registration is to be issued is covered by the minimum amount of vehicle liability insurance required by Transportation Article, §17-103, Annotated Code of Maryland.

> CHRISTINE NIZER Administrator Motor Vehicle Administration

## Title 14 INDEPENDENT AGENCIES

## Subtitle 09 WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION

## 14.09.17 Emergency Powers of Chairman of the Commission

Authority: Labor and Employment Article, §§9-105(f), 9-206(d), 9-302(f)(7), 9-309(a), 9-311(c), 9-314(b), 9-316(g)(2), 9-402.1(j), 9-404(a), 9-663(a)(1) and (2), 9-6A-04, 9-6A-07, 9-6A-11, 9-6A-16, 9-701, 9-720(a), and 9-721(a), Annotated Code of Maryland

#### **Notice of Proposed Action**

[20-086-P]

The Workers' Compensation Commission proposes to adopt new Regulations .01—.03 under a new chapter, COMAR 14.09.17 Emergency Powers of Chairman of the Commission. This action was considered at a public meeting held on March 12, 2020, notice of which was given by publication in 47:5 Md. R. 326 (February 28, 2020), pursuant to General Provisions Article, §3-302(c), Annotated Code of Maryland.

#### **Statement of Purpose**

The purpose of this action is to grant authority to the Chairman of the Workers' Compensation Commission to direct and coordinate the Commission's response in the event of a natural or other event, for which either the Governor has declared a Statewide emergency pursuant to Public Safety Article, Title 14, Annotated Code of Maryland, or a local state of emergency exists that significantly disrupts access to or the operations of one or more Commission hearing locations or other Commission facilities or the ability of the Commission to operate effectively.

#### **Comparison to Federal Standards**

There is no corresponding federal standard to this proposed action.

#### **Estimate of Economic Impact**

The proposed action has no economic impact.

#### **Economic Impact on Small Businesses**

The proposed action has minimal or no economic impact on small businesses.

#### Impact on Individuals with Disabilities

The proposed action has no impact on individuals with disabilities.

#### **Opportunity for Public Comment**

Comments may be sent to Amy S. Lackington, Administrator, Workers' Compensation Commission, 10 East Baltimore Street, Baltimore, MD 21202, or call 410-864-5300, or email to alackington@wcc.state.md.us, or fax to 410-864-5301. Comments will be accepted through May 26, 2020. A public hearing has not been scheduled.

#### **Open Meeting**

Final action on the proposal will be considered by the Workers' Compensation Commission during a public meeting to be held on June 11, 2020, at 10 East Baltimore Street, Baltimore, MD 21202.

#### .01 Scope.

A. Generally. This chapter applies to situations in which the Governor has declared an emergency pursuant to Public Safety Article, Title 14, Annotated Code of Maryland, and the emergency or directives issued by the Governor pursuant to the emergency significantly affect access to or the operations of one or more Commission hearing locations or other Commission facilities or the ability of the Commission to operate effectively.

B. Other Events Affecting the Commission. The authority granted specifically by this chapter generally also may be exercised, to the extent necessary, by the Chairman of the Commission in the event of a natural or other event that significantly disrupts access to or the operations of one or more Commission hearing locations or other Commission facilities or the ability of the Commission to operate effectively, but for which the Governor has not declared an emergency pursuant to Public Safety Article, Title 14, Annotated Code of Maryland.

C. Supplemental; Conflict. The provisions of this chapter are in addition to and supplemental to the authority of the Commission granted elsewhere in this subtitle, but, to the extent of any conflict with other provisions of this subtitle, any authority provided in this chapter shall prevail.

## .02 Coordination with Governor and Chief Judge of the Court of Appeals.

Upon the declaration of any emergency by the Governor pursuant to Public Safety Article, Title 14, Annotated Code of Maryland, the Chairman of the Commission, directly or through designees, shall, to the extent practicable, consult with the Governor, the Governor's designees, the Maryland Emergency Management Agency, other Executive Branch officials, and, as appropriate, the Chief Judge of the Court of Appeals, in order to coordinate Executive and Judicial Branch responses to the emergency as they relate to operations of the Commission.

#### .03 Authority of Chairman.

A. Generally. Upon a determination by the Chairman of the Commission that an emergency or other event within the scope of Regulation .01 of this chapter significantly affects access to or the operations of one or more Commission hearing locations or other Commission facilities or the ability of the Commission to operate effectively, the Chairman, by Administrative Order, may, to the extent necessary:

(1) Amend and superintend existing Continuity of Operations (COOP) plans;

(2) Suspend the operation of rules or regulations that cannot be implemented as intended because of the emergency;

(3) Identify and direct the use of alternative locations to conduct Commission business if existing facilities become inaccessible or unusable;

(4) Transfer cases pending in one hearing location that becomes inaccessible or unusable to any other hearing location;

(5) Permit claims or documents to be filed in alternate locations or by alternative means if the normal location, that is, Baltimore City, is not reasonably accessible or usable;

(6) Suspend, toll, or grant relief from time deadlines or filing requirements that otherwise would expire when there is no practical ability of a party to comply with the deadline or seek other relief;

(7) Triage claims or issues and categories of claims or issues with respect to expedited treatment;

(8) Suspend any Commission business not deemed essential;

(9) Designate other Commissioners or recall Commissioners or Commission officials to implement directives entered by the Chairman or the Governor; and

(10) Take any other appropriate action necessary to assure that essential Commission business is effectively handled by the Commission.

B. Duration: Compatibility with Governor's Directives. The authority granted in  $\S A$  of this regulation may be implemented only as necessary during the emergency or its immediate aftermath and, if exercised following an emergency declared by the Governor, shall be compatible with directives and orders issued by the Governor. Promptly upon termination of the emergency, the Chairman shall review all directives issued pursuant to \$A of this regulation and determine a reasonable schedule for the rescission of those directives.

C. Chairman Unavailable. During any period in which the Chairman is unavailable to exercise the authority granted in \$A of this regulation, that authority may be exercised by the Commissioner on the Commission most senior in length of service on the Commission, unless the Chairman has designated another Commissioner on the Commission to exercise that authority or the Governor has designated another Commissioner on the Commission to serve as Acting Chairman during that period.

D. Notice and Posting of Directives. To the extent practicable, a copy of all directives and orders issued under §A of this regulation following a declaration of emergency by the Governor shall be sent to the Governor, the Director of the Maryland Emergency, Management Agency, and, in a catastrophic health emergency, the Secretary of Health, and shall be posted on the Commission website. Notices may be sent electronically and may be posted through Commission social media accounts as appropriate.

R. KARL AUMANN Chairman Workers' Compensation Commission

## Maryland Workers' Compensation Commissioners' Meeting Minutes Tuesday, June 11, 2020

Call to Order: Chairman R. Karl Aumann called the meeting to order at 10:01 a.m.

The Chairman reminded all outside guests who were attending via telephone to please mute their phones and reminded them that this a meeting of the Commissioners and not an open forum for questions, comments, etc.

**Present:** Chairman Aumann and Commissioners Kathleen Evans, James Forrester, Allan Kittleman, Morrisann Martin, Howard Metz, Ju Oh, Maureen Quinn, Delia Schadt and Tracey Parker-Warren. Staff members attending were Mary Ahearn, Jerome Reichmister, M.D., Scott Curtis, Amy Lackington, and Stacey L. Roig, Secretary of the Commission.

A list of guests who called in to this Open Meeting is attached to the Minutes.

**Approval of Minutes:** The Minutes of the June 2, 2020 Commissioners' Meeting were reviewed and, upon motion of Commissioner Quinn and second of Commissioner Martin, the Minutes were approved with a unanimous vote.

**Chairman's Report:** The Chairman stated that in-person hearings resumed on June 8, 2020. Hearings are scheduled through the end of July. Postponements have created some gaps in the schedule but, the cases are still moving through the system. Many cases are being heard through video hearings and requests from the video hearings remains strong. The Commission was notified that the sports teams are trying to have all their hearings done through video hearings. Scheduling all hearings is a challenge right now because it is a manual process but, WCC staff is working very hard at filling gaps as they are created and keeping the schedule updated. The backlog reduction is down to 5000 cases that are "over 30 days" and we are under 7000 cases that need to be set in for hearings. The "over 30 days" number is most significant and is down close to 40%. The Chairman thanked the Commissioners and the staff for all their efforts to get the backlog numbers down.

The Chairman announced that there will be no in-person educational conferences for this year. Most of the organizations are going to some form of a virtual program. It is expected that there may be a special session of the general assembly to enact changes for the "new normal". The procedures for our hearings are very different and must continue to be followed. The Chairman thanked the Commissioners for their adjustments and cooperation with the new procedures, including the tracing procedures. It is very important that every person who enters the Commission offices provide their name and address for tracing purposes should there be a determination that someone in the building is or becomes COVID positive. Commissioner Quinn asked if an "auto complete" feature could be added to the form for the parties to the case, especially the attorneys who are entered multiple times in the same day because of multiple hearings. Finally, the Chairman noted that there have been no hearings in LaVale due to the hearing site being inside of a hotel; however, beginning July 6, 2020, in-person hearings will be able to resume in LaVale.

**New Business:** Commissioner Kittleman reported that a meeting of the Medical Fee Guide Committee was held on June 8, 2020. The Committee reviewed a request for an increase to telephonic service codes in alignment with CMS rates. The Committee agreed to allow the increase to the three (3) codes temporarily, if the call is initiated by the patient or, by the doctor returning a call from a patient. The temporary increase will remain in affect for as long as the State of Emergency declaration remains in place. Once the State of Emergency has terminated, the MFG Committee will revisit the issue. Dr.

Reichmister also noted that the Committee added that clear documentation of the length of the call will be required

Commissioner Forrester discussed procedures when a settlement or postponement occurs the night before the hearing. Several of the Commissioners are using similar procedures to get the information to the WCC for the terms of an Order that may need to be issued. Email is preferable to text or getting the parties on speaker with the court reporter in the room to record the discussion on the phone.

Commissioner Metz asked about video hearings when there is not consent by all parties and if the Commission will be mandating them if one party requests a video hearing. The Chairman responded that there are two choices for hearings and all parties must consent to the video hearing.

Commissioner Evans discussed challenges with uploading exhibits. Mary Ahearn confirmed that the Commission is not accepting paper documents and they must all be uploaded. If there are problems, please direct the person to the IT Web Support team for assistance,

**Old Business:** Scott Curtis, Principal Counsel, discussed the final adoption of the emergency powers to the Chairman during a State of Emergency. COMAR 14.09.17 – Emergency Powers of the Chairman of the Commission was adopted on March 12, 2020 and was publicized in the MD Register on April 24<sup>th</sup>. The public comment period ended May 26<sup>th</sup> and on June 9<sup>th</sup>, the publication period ended. Mr. Curtis confirmed that there were no public comments and he asked for final approval.

A motion to approve COMAR 14.09.17 was made by Commissioner Quinn and seconded by Commissioner Martin. There was no discussion and by unanimous vote, the motion was approved.

Mary Ahearn updated the Commissioners that the Claimant Consent Form can now be uploaded.

**Medical Alerts:** Dr. Reichmister reminded everyone to please be safe, be cautious, wear masks, use frequent hand washing, social distance and stay home as much as possible. Dr. Reichmister also presented an informative session on the use of insect repellents and CDC guidelines and best practices for the use of insect repellents.

**Adjournment:** Upon a motion by Commissioner Forrester and second by Commissioner Martin and upon unanimous vote, the meeting was adjourned at 10:30 a.m.

R. Karl Aumann, Chairman

Name		Law Firm, Company or Other Affiliation
Cindy L. Armstrong, Esquire	*	Erlandson, Vernon & Daney, LLC
Douglas M. Gross, Esq.	*	LAW OFFICES OF DOUGLAS M. GROSS, LLC
		Employees of a Subsidiary of The Hartford Financial
E. Meredith Wolak, Esq.	*	Services Group, Inc.
Gretchen Rogers, Esq.	*	Berman, Sobin, Gross, Feldman & Darby
Joan P. Adelman	*	IWIF/Chesapeake Employers' Insurance Company
		Montgomery County Self Insurance Program   Division
Lissa H. Bales   Claims Manager	*	of Risk Management
Michael L. Dailey, Esquire	*	Schmidt, Dailey & O'Neill, LLC
Michael LaFontaine, Esq.	*	Cohen, Snyder, Eisenberg & Katzenberg P.A.
Natasha C. Richards	*	Montgomery County Government
Pearl B. Monroe	*	MC Innovations, LLC
Sara El-Shall, Esq.	*	Shultz Legal, LLC
Stephan A. Timchula	*	Timchula & Smith, P.A.
Suja M. Varghese, Assistant County Attorney	*	Baltimore County Office of Law
Tina Lane	*	Mitchell
Kelly L. Stesch	*	Workers' Compensation Commission
Jacqueline Proctor	*	Workers' Compensation Commission

## Maryland Workers' Compensation Commissioners' Meeting Minutes Tuesday, June 25, 2020

Call to Order: Chairman R. Karl Aumann called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m.

The Chairman reminded all outside guests who were attending via telephone to please mute their phones and reminded them that this is a meeting of the Commissioners and not an open forum for questions, comments, etc.

**Present:** Chairman Aumann and Commissioners Kathleen Evans, James Forrester, Allan Kittleman, Morrisann Martin, Howard Metz, Ju Oh, Maureen Quinn, Delia Schadt and Tracey Parker-Warren. Staff members attending were Mary Ahearn, Jerome Reichmister, M.D., Scott Curtis, Amy Lackington, and Stacey L. Roig, Secretary of the Commission.

A list of guests who called in to this Open Meeting is attached to the Minutes.

**Approval of Minutes:** The Minutes of the June 11, 2020 Commissioners' Meeting were reviewed and, upon motion of Commissioner Quinn and second of Commissioner Parker-Warren, the Minutes were approved with a unanimous vote.

Chairman's Report: The Chairman discussed the cancellation of the MWCEA Conference in September for 2020. The decision was not easy but prudent, given the COVID-19 pandemic situation. There will be other programs that will be held virtually this year, including SAWCA, NWCJA and IAIABC in July, August, and September, respectively. The in-person hearings are proceeding well. The processes and procedures are very different and that does leave gaps in the day, but the transition has been smooth. The Chairman thanked the Commissioners and the WC Community for their patience and flexibility. The Chairman also commented that contract tracing online has been a welcome addition to keeping the process smooth. The Chairman also specifically praised the Court Reporters and Security personnel for all their extra work to maintain all levels of safety in the hearing rooms for all participating in the in-person hearings. The Chairman was very pleased to announce that all the hard work has paid off with the reduction of the backlog by 41% overall and a 56% reduction in the cases over 30 days. Cases have been set through August. The Chairman thanked the claims processing staff and, specifically Debbie Thomas, Angie Eberhardt and Dorothy Smith for all their hard work with manually setting the calendar. In addition, the reduction in cases awaiting a hearing is also a result of both sides in the cases working together to resolve issues. The Chairman also announced that the Enterprise Modernization team, while working almost 100% remotely, is on track to open CompHub on September 1, 2020. In addition to the EMP team working remotely, at least half of the WCC staff is also teleworking with others in the office and some in a hybrid of some telework and some days in the office. Please encourage the use of the touchless thermometers for staff as well as outsiders, who are required to have their temperature taken before entering the sites.

**New Business:** Commissioner Evans asked for clarification on the timeline for when people who have already had coronavirus can return to the office after their recovery. The Commission has requested additional information and guidance from the MD Department of Health and is awaiting the response. Dr. Reichmister advised that the SDC Guidelines suggest that employers allow flexibility with a self-quarantine for two weeks after diagnosis. If after seven (7) days the person is asymptomatic, they may return to work.

Commissioner Quinn suggested an alternative to attorneys and others uploading 200-page exhibits by providing a summary of the physical therapy sessions and work hardening sessions, which will provide

all the important information without all the extra paper. Commissioner Martin added that all parties should be encouraged not to duplicate pages and documents that are already in the system.

Commissioner Parker-Warren discussed a call-in interpreter service that is available for immediate service in the hearing if needed. Dorothy Smith sent out the telephone number to all the Commissioners. Please check email and make note of the number for this service.

### Old Business: No Report

**Medical Alerts:** Dr. Reichmister reminded everyone to please be safe, be cautious, wear masks, use frequent hand washing, social distance and stay home as much as possible. Dr. Reichmister also presented information on a hand sanitizer form Mexico that has a warning from the USFDA because the product contains wood alcohol, which can be absorbed into the skin and is poisonous. Dr, Reichmister also reported on a study that found certain blood groups to be a more or less risk for COVID-19. The A blood type group is at the highest risk compared to the B group. The O blood type group has little to no risk as compared to the others. Dr. Reichmister also reported on a live vaccine testing to reduce the symptoms of coronavirus. This is not a vaccine to prevent contracting the virus, but it is another front on which the researchers are working on attacking the virus.

**Adjournment:** Upon a motion by Commissioner Forrester and second by Commissioner Evans and upon unanimous vote, the meeting was adjourned at 9:55 a.m.

R. Karl Aumann, Chairman

#### Name

Cindy L. Armstrong, Esquire Douglas M. Gross, Esq.

Joan P. Adelman Neydyn S. Gomez, Esq. Paul G. Donoghue Suja M. Varghese, Assistant County Attorney Sara El-Shall, Esq. John D. Kromkowski

## Law Firm, Company or Other Affiliation

Erlandson, Vernon & Daney, LLC LAW OFFICES OF DOUGLAS M. GROSS, LLC

IWIF/Chesapeake Employers' Insurance Company Antezana & Antezana, LLC Rollins, Smalkin, Richards & Mackie, L.L.C. Baltimore County Office of Law Shultz Legal, LLC Law Office of John D. Kromkowski LARRY HOGAN Governor

BOYD K. RUTHERFORD Lt. Governor

MARY K. AHEARN Chief Executive Officer



## WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION

10 East Baltimore Street, Baltimore, Maryland 21202-1641 Phone: 410-864-5100 • MD Toll Free: 1-800-492-0479 TTY Users Call Via Maryland Relay www.wcc.state.md.u s

#### R. KA RL A UMANN Chairman

KATHLEEN A. EVANS JAMES R. FORRESTER ALLAN 1-1. KITTLEMAN MORRJ SANN MA RTIN HOWARD L. METZ JU Y. OH MA UREEN QUINN DELI A TURANO SCHA DT TRACEY PARKER WA RREN Commissioners

## **COMMISSION MEETING**

Thursday, July 9, 2020

- 1. Approval of June 25, 2020 Minutes
- 2. Chairman's Report
- 3. Old Business
- 4. New Business
- 5. Medical Alerts
- 6. Adjournment

# Maryland Workers' Compensation Commissioners' Meeting Minutes Tuesday, June 25, 2020

Call to Order: Chairman R. Karl Aumann called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m.

The Chairman reminded all outside guests who were attending via telephone to please mute their phones and reminded them that this is a meeting of the Commissioners and not an open forum for questions, comments, etc.

**Present:** Chairman Aumann and Commissioners Kathleen Evans, James Forrester, Allan Kittleman, Morrisann Martin, Howard Metz, Ju Oh, Maureen Quinn, Delia Schadt and Tracey Parker-Warren. Staff members attending were Mary Ahearn, Jerome Reichmister, M.D., Scott Curtis, Amy Lackington, and Stacey L. Roig, Secretary of the Commission.

A list of guests who called in to this Open Meeting is attached to the Minutes.

**Approval of Minutes:** The Minutes of the June 11, 2020 Commissioners' Meeting were reviewed and, upon motion of Commissioner Quinn and second of Commissioner Parker-Warren, the Minutes were approved with a unanimous vote.

Chairman's Report: The Chairman discussed the cancellation of the MWCEA Conference in September for 2020. The decision was not easy but prudent, given the COVID-19 pandemic situation. There will be other programs that will be held virtually this year, including SAWCA, NWCJA and IAIABC in July, August, and September, respectively. The in-person hearings are proceeding well. The processes and procedures are very different and that does leave gaps in the day, but the transition has been smooth. The Chairman thanked the Commissioners and the WC Community for their patience and flexibility. The Chairman also commented that contract tracing online has been a welcome addition to keeping the process smooth. The Chairman also specifically praised the Court Reporters and Security personnel for all their extra work to maintain all levels of safety in the hearing rooms for all participating in the in-person hearings. The Chairman was very pleased to announce that all the hard work has paid off with the reduction of the backlog by 41% overall and a 56% reduction in the cases over 30 days. Cases have been set through August. The Chairman thanked the claims processing staff and, specifically Debbie Thomas, Angie Eberhardt and Dorothy Smith for all their hard work with manually setting the calendar. In addition, the reduction in cases awaiting a hearing is also a result of both sides in the cases working together to resolve issues. The Chairman also announced that the Enterprise Modernization team, while working almost 100% remotely, is on track to open CompHub on September 1, 2020. In addition to the EMP team working remotely, at least half of the WCC staff is also teleworking with others in the office and some in a hybrid of some telework and some days in the office. Please encourage the use of the touchless thermometers for staff as well as outsiders, who are required to have their temperature taken before entering the sites.

**New Business:** Commissioner Evans asked for clarification on the timeline for when people who have already had coronavirus can return to the office after their recovery. The Commission has requested additional information and guidance from the MD Department of Health and is awaiting the response. Dr. Reichmister advised that the SDC Guidelines suggest that employers allow flexibility with a self-quarantine for two weeks after diagnosis. If after seven (7) days the person is asymptomatic, they may return to work.

Commissioner Quinn suggested an alternative to attorneys and others uploading 200-page exhibits by providing a summary of the physical therapy sessions and work hardening sessions, which will provide

all the important information without all the extra paper. Commissioner Martin added that all parties should be encouraged not to duplicate pages and documents that are already in the system.

Commissioner Parker-Warren discussed a call-in interpreter service that is available for immediate service in the hearing if needed. Dorothy Smith sent out the telephone number to all the Commissioners. Please check email and make note of the number for this service.

#### Old Business: No Report

**Medical Alerts:** Dr. Reichmister reminded everyone to please be safe, be cautious, wear masks, use frequent hand washing, social distance and stay home as much as possible. Dr. Reichmister also presented information on a hand sanitizer form Mexico that has a warning from the USFDA because the product contains wood alcohol, which can be absorbed into the skin and is poisonous. Dr, Reichmister also reported on a study that found certain blood groups to be a more or less risk for COVID-19. The A blood type group is at the highest risk compared to the B group. The O blood type group has little to no risk as compared to the others. Dr. Reichmister also reported on a live vaccine testing to reduce the symptoms of coronavirus. This is not a vaccine to prevent contracting the virus, but it is another front on which the researchers are working on attacking the virus.

**Adjournment:** Upon a motion by Commissioner Forrester and second by Commissioner Evans and upon unanimous vote, the meeting was adjourned at 9:55 a.m.

R. Karl Aumann, Chairman

#### Name

Cindy L. Armstrong, Esquire Douglas M. Gross, Esq.

Joan P. Adelman Neydyn S. Gomez, Esq. Paul G. Donoghue Suja M. Varghese, Assistant County Attorney Sara El-Shall, Esq. John D. Kromkowski

## Law Firm, Company or Other Affiliation

Erlandson, Vernon & Daney, LLC LAW OFFICES OF DOUGLAS M. GROSS, LLC

IWIF/Chesapeake Employers' Insurance Company Antezana & Antezana, LLC Rollins, Smalkin, Richards & Mackie, L.L.C. Baltimore County Office of Law Shultz Legal, LLC Law Office of John D. Kromkowski

# Maryland Workers' Compensation Commissioners' Meeting Minutes Thursday, July 23, 2020

Call to Order: Chairman R. Karl Aumann called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m.

The Chairman reminded all outside guests who were attending via telephone to please mute their phones and reminded them that this is a meeting of the Commissioners and not an open forum for questions, comments, etc.

**Present:** Chairman Aumann and Commissioners Kathleen Evans, James Forrester, Allan Kittleman, Morrisann Martin, Howard Metz, Ju Oh, Maureen Quinn, and Tracey Parker-Warren. Staff members attending were Mary Ahearn, Jerome Reichmister, M.D., Scott Curtis, Amy Lackington, and Stacey L. Roig, Secretary of the Commission.

A list of guests who called in to this Open Meeting is attached to the Minutes.

**Approval of Minutes:** The Minutes of the July 9, 2020 Commissioners' Meeting were reviewed and, upon motion of Commissioner Martin and second of Commissioner Quinn, the Minutes were approved with a unanimous vote.

Chairman's Report: The Chairman discussed the excellent progress that is being made on attacking the backlog of cases. The Commission has a 70% reduction in backlog since mid-May when the backlog was at its highest point. Overall, pending cases are at 5400 before setting October dockets. The Chairman thanked the Commissioners and agency staff for all the hard work to tackle the backlog. The Chairman announced that the Commission will be focusing on Beltsville and reducing hearings at other sites to address the larger backlog for that location. Beltsville has the largest number of hearings, so extra dockets will be set in Beltsville. The November schedule will be modified to reduce the number of afternoon dockets; however, they will continue to be set as needed due to COVID-19. The Chairman reported that the number of claims filed dropped in March, April, and May, as expected. Year over year claims filed at this point in the year in 2019, there is an 8% decrease in claims filed. The Chairman reminded the Commissioners that masks are to be worn at all times because they do make a difference. Please remind all in the hearing rooms to wear their masks at all times and to cover the mouth and nose to prevent the need to close down in-person hearings. The Chairman reported that there are two virtual conference days by SAWCA coming up in the following week. The panel discussions will give everyone a good idea of the challenges being faced by workers' compensation professionals around the country and how the challenges are being addressed by our peers. The discussions are expected to be very informative. The enterprise modernization continues to move forward. Technical issues with uploading documents continue to exist; however, IT has been very responsive working on the problems for the community. The Chairman also discussed budget concerns due to a serious reduction of revenue for the State. The Board of Public Works has made some significant changes to the budget, although the Commission is not expected to be affected at this time. Personnel limitations may be coming in the future.

**Old Business:** Scott Curtis, Principal Counsel, reported on the status of certain regulation changes necessary for the conversion from the current WFMS online claim processing to CompHub and presented COMAR 14.09.01.01 - 14.09.04.01 for final adoption. (See attachment) After a motion by Commissioner Quinn and a second from Commissioner Metz, and a unanimous vote, final adoption of the regulation changes was approved.

**New Business:** Commissioner Quinn discussed attorney fee petitions and requested that attorneys be reminded that if their fee petition has not been submitted prior to the Order being issued, they should email the Commissioner Assistant to alert them that a fee petition has been filed. Commissioner Quinn also discussed the importance of texting all hearing personnel the night before a docket given all of the docket changes that are happening regularly. Communication is of utmost importance now. Commissioner Parker -Warren discussed opening times at the regional hearing sites and inquired about set times for all Commission staff to be at the hearing sites. The Chairman stated that arrival times are not firm; however, it should be early enough to allow plenty of time to sanitize and set-up before the first hearing parties arrive at the site.

**Medical Alerts:** Dr. Reichmister reminded everyone to please be safe, be cautious, wear masks, use frequent hand washing, social distance and stay home as much as possible. Dr. Reichmister also discussed a new publication on non-operative approaches to treatment of low back pain that he has put together for the Commissioners. Dr. Reichmister also discussed several medical alerts of interest to the Commissioners.

**Adjournment:** Upon a motion by Commissioner Forrester and second by Commissioner Quinn and upon unanimous vote, the meeting was adjourned at 10:05a.m.:

R. Karl Aumann, Chairman

Name

Douglas M. Gross, Esq. Paul G. Donoghue Law Firm, Company or Other Affiliation

Law Offices of Douglas M. Gross LLC Rollins, Smalkin, Richards & Mackie, L.L.C.

# Title 14 INDEPENDENT AGENCIES Subtitle 09 WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION

# **Notice of Proposed Action**

[20-076-P]

The Workers' Compensation Commission proposes to amend:

 Regulations .01, .02, .04, and .09 under COMAR 14.09.01 General Administrative;
 Regulation .02 under COMAR 14.09.02 Requirements for Filing and Amending Claims; and

(3) Regulation .01 under COMAR 14.09.04 Legal Representation and Fees.

This action was considered at a public meeting held on February 13, 2020, notice of which was given by publication in 47:3 Md. R. 234 (January 31, 2020), pursuant to General Provisions Article, §3-302(c), Annotated Code of Maryland.

# **Statement of Purpose**

The purpose of this action is to facilitate migration from legacy system WFMS to CompHub by updating WFMS references to CompHub; to simplify the regulation regarding roles for subscribers to CompHub to require that subscribers adhere to the terms of service assigned to their designated roles; to clarify that "papers" filed electronically need not be on physical paper, and to use the term "paper" as that term is used in the Maryland Rules; to permit filing by power of attorney in CompHub and to ensure that the power of attorney form meets minimum statutory requirements; and to bring the regulation concerning terminating the appearance of an attorney into alignment with the practice in civil matters before the District Court of Maryland (see Md. Rule 3-132), while recognizing that claims under the Maryland Workers' Compensation Law never "close" unless they are settled and there is no possibility of future medical benefits.

# **Comparison to Federal Standards**

There is no corresponding federal standard to this proposed action.

# **Estimate of Economic Impact**

The proposed action has no economic impact.

# **Economic Impact on Small Businesses**

The proposed action has minimal or no economic impact on small businesses.

# Impact on Individuals with Disabilities

The proposed action has no impact on individuals with disabilities.

## **Opportunity for Public Comment**

Comments may be sent to Amy S. Lackington, Administrator, Workers' Compensation Commission, 10 E. Baltimore Street, Baltimore, MD 21202, or call 410-864-5300, or email to alackington@wcc.state.md.us, or fax to 410-864-5301. Comments will be accepted through May 11, 2020. A public hearing has not been scheduled.

# **Open Meeting**

Final action on the proposal will be considered by the Workers' Compensation Commission during a public meeting to be held on May 14, 2020, at 9:30 a.m., at 10 E. Baltimore Street, Baltimore, MD 21202.

#### 14.09.01 General Administrative

Authority: Health-General Article, §4-303; Labor and Employment Article, §§9-307, 9-309, 9-310.2, 9-314, 9-404, 9-405, 9-410, 9-602, 9-603, 9-610.1, 9-625, 9-635, 9-689, 9-701, 9-709, 9-710, 9-711, 9-721, 9-731, 9-736, 9-739, and 9-6A-07; Insurance Article, §§19-405 and 19-406; State Government Article, §10-1103; Annotated Code of Maryland

#### .01 Definitions.

A. (text unchanged)

B. Terms Defined.

(1)—(4) (text unchanged)

(5) "CompHub" means the Commission's online system designed to facilitate the filing and adjudication of workers' compensation claims, and to provide other services related to workers' compensation benefits.

[(5)](6)—[(12)](13) (text unchanged)

(14) "Paper" means a document filed with the Commission, whether in physical paper form or electronic form or format.

[(13)] (15)-[(14)] (16) (text unchanged)

[(15)] (17) "Role" means the functionality and type of account for which a user is authorized in [the WFMS system] *CompHub* and includes [attorney, attorney proxy, employer, insurer, healthcare provider, insurer delegate and healthcare provider delegate.] *the following and their delegates and proxies:* 

(a) Attorney;

(b) Claimant;

(c) Employer;

(d) Insurer;

(e) Healthcare provider or practitioner; and

(f) Vocational rehabilitation provider or practitioner.

[(16)] (18)—[(18)] (20) (text unchanged)

(21) "Subscriber" means an authorized user in CompHub having the access applicable to the role for which the user is authorized.

[(19)] (22)—[(21)] (24) (text unchanged)

[(22)] (25) "Web-Enabled File Management System" or "WFMS" means the Commission's *legacy* subscriberbased web-enabled electronic file management system designed to facilitate the filing and adjudication of workers' compensation claims. *Until the transition from WFMS to CompHub is complete, references to CompHub include WFMS*.

#### .02 [Commission] Forms and Documents.

A. Forms prepared by the Commission, and made available on the Commission's website or through [WFMS] *CompHub*, are mandatory and shall be used for filing claims, notices, requests, motions, and other papers as required by law, or by these regulations.

B. (text unchanged)

C. Power of Attorney.

(1) If a party files a form or document under power of attorney, the party shall:

(a) Use a statutory form power of attorney in accordance with Estates and Trusts Article, §§17-101—17-204, Annotated Code of Maryland; and

(b) File electronically a copy of the power of attorney with the Commission.

(2) Only one copy of the power of attorney need be filed with the Commission.

#### .04 Filing Forms and Documents with the Commission.

Forms and documents may be filed with the Commission by one of the following methods:

A. Electronically through [the WFMS] CompHub;

B.--C. (text unchanged)

.09 [Web-Enabled File Management System] CompHub Conditions of Use.

[A. The WFMS is a subscriber-based web-enabled electronic file management system designed to facilitate the filing and adjudication of workers' compensation claims.

B. An attorney, employer, insurer, or healthcare provider may register for a no-cost subscription to the WFMS by:

(1) Completing an online application available at the Commission's website; and

(2) Satisfying the requirements applicable to the type of account (role).

C. After filing the online application, an attorney seeking to register for a subscription shall appear before a Commission official to validate his or her identify by:

(1) Scheduling an appointment with a court reporter at a remote hearing site; or

(2) Appearing before the public service unit at the Commission's principal office.

D. An attorney shall present a valid government-issued photo identification to validate his or her identity.

E. Each attorney seeking to use the WFMS shall register for and maintain his or her own individual subscription.

F. No law firm subscriptions are permitted.

G. Conditions of use.]

[(1)] A. A subscriber shall:

[(a)](1) (text unchanged)

[(b)] (2) Abide by the terms of the service agreement available on CompHub, applicable to the role for which the user is authorized in CompHub.

[(2)] B. A [WFMS] subscriber's CompHub subscription may be suspended or terminated if the subscriber: [(a)] (1)—[(d)] (4) (text unchanged)

[(a)](1)—[(u)](4) (text unchanged)

[(e)] (5) Violates the terms of the service agreement *available on CompHub, applicable to the role for which the user is authorized in CompHub.* 

[H. Proxies.

(1) An attorney subscriber may authorize administrative or support staff to function as the attorney's proxy.

(2) The proxy shall complete an online proxy application.

(3) The attorney subscriber may validate the proxy's registration electronically by selecting and acknowledging the proxy.

(4) An attorney may not designate another attorney as a proxy.

(5) Once validated, the proxy may have access to all claim documents in all claims in which the attorney has entered the attorney's appearance.

(6) The attorney subscriber is responsible for all actions and conduct of the attorney's designated proxies.

(7) The attorney proxy shall abide by the terms and conditions of the subscription.

(8) An attorney proxy may not use any other subscriber's account to access the WFMS system.

I. Insurer Delegates.

(1) An insurer subscriber may authorize administrative or support staff to function as the insurer's delegate.

(2) The insurer delegate shall complete the online insurer delegate application.

(3) The insurer subscriber may validate the insurer delegate's registration electronically by selecting and acknowledging the delegate.

(4) Once validated, the insurer delegate may have access to all claim documents, excluding protected and confidential documents, in all claims in which the insurer is a party.

(5) The insurer subscriber is responsible for all actions and conduct of its delegates.

(6) If an insurer subscriber's access is terminated, the access afforded to its delegates will also be terminated.

(7) An insurer delegate shall use his or her individual subscription to access the WFMS system.

(8) An insurer delegate may not use any other subscriber's account to access the WFMS system.

(9) An insurer delegate shall abide by the terms and conditions of the subscription.

(10) An insurer subscriber may not designate another subscriber as the insurer's delegate.

J. Healthcare Provider Delegates.

(1) A healthcare provider subscriber may authorize administrative or support staff as the healthcare provider's delegate

(2) The healthcare provider delegate shall complete the online healthcare provider delegate application.

(3) The healthcare provider subscriber may validate the healthcare provider delegate's registration electronically by selecting and acknowledging the delegate.

(4) Once validated, the healthcare provider delegate may have access to claim documents, excluding protected and confidential documents, for the purpose of obtaining settlement, claim and hearing status information.

(5) The healthcare provider subscriber is responsible for all actions and conduct of its delegates.

(6) If a healthcare provider subscriber's access is terminated, the access afforded to its delegates will also be terminated.

(7) A healthcare provider delegate shall use his or her individual subscription to access the WFMS system.

(8) A healthcare provider delegate may not use any other subscriber's account to access the WFMS system.

(9) A healthcare provider delegate shall abide by the terms and conditions of the subscription.

(10) An healthcare provider subscriber may not designate another subscriber as the healthcare provider delegate.]

# 14.09.02 Requirements for Filing and Amending Claims

Authority: Labor and Employment Article, §§9-309, 9-314, 9-402, 9-404, 9-602, 9-701, 9-709–9-711, and 9-736; State Government Article, §10-1103; Annotated Code of Maryland

#### .02 Requirements for Filing and Amending Claims.

A. Claim for Benefits.

(1) To initiate a claim for benefits, an employee shall file a claim form with the Commission as follows:

(a) If represented by counsel, counsel shall file the claim on behalf of the employee electronically through [the WFMS] *CompHub*; or

(b) If unrepresented by counsel, the employee may file the claim:

(i) Electronically through [the public portal] CompHub; or

(ii) (text unchanged)

(2)—(4) (text unchanged)

(5) When completing the claim form, the claimant shall sign an authorization for disclosure of health information [directing the claimant's health care providers to disclose] *for the release* to the claimant's attorney, the claimant's employer, the employer's insurer, *the Subsequent Injury Fund, the Uninsured Employers' Fund,* or any agent thereof, the claimant's medical [records] *information* that [are] *is* relevant to:

(a)—(b) (text unchanged)

(6)—(9) (text unchanged)

B. (text unchanged)

C. Amendment of Claim to Add or Remove a Body Part.

(1)—(3) (text unchanged)

(4) When completing the claim amendment form, the claimant shall sign an authorization for disclosure of health information authorizing the claimant's health care providers to disclose to the claimant's attorney, the claimant's employer, the employer's insurer, *the Subsequent Injury Fund, the Uninsured Employers' Fund,* or any agent thereof, the claimant's medical [records] *information* that [are] *is* relevant to the member of the body identified by the claim amendment form.

(5) (text unchanged)

#### 14.09.04 Legal Representation and Fees

Authority: Labor and Employment Article, §§9-309, 9-721, and 9-731, Annotated Code of Maryland

.01 Legal Representation.

#### A. (text unchanged)

B. Attorney Registration with Commission.

(1) An attorney wishing to practice before the Commission shall[:

- (a) Register] register for [the WFMS] CompHub [in accordance with COMAR 14.09.01.09;
- (b) Complete and file an Attorney Registration form; and
- (c) Submit the attorney registration fee].
- (2) (text unchanged)

C.-D. (text unchanged)

E. Termination of Representation. [An attorney whose appearance has been entered on behalf of a party to a claim remains the attorney of record for the party to that claim until the attorney files a Notice to Withdraw Appearance form accompanied by:

(1) The client's written consent to the withdrawal; or

(2) Certification that, at least 15 days prior to the filing of the Notice, a copy of the following was mailed to the client and that the client had consented or had not responded:

(a) Notice to Withdraw Appearance; and

(b) Notice advising the client:

(i) To have another attorney enter an appearance; or

(ii) To notify the Commission in writing of the client's intention to proceed in proper person.

F. The attorney filing the Notice to Withdraw Appearance shall also certify that:

(1) Copies of the Notice to Withdraw Appearance form with the attachment required by this regulation were served on all parties; and

(2) Notice of any pending hearing was mailed to the attorney's client.]

- (1) By Notice. An attorney may withdraw an appearance by filing a notice of withdrawal if: (a) The client has another attorney of record; or
  - (b) The claim has been settled and there is no possibility of any future medical benefits.

(2) By Motion. If an attorney is not permitted to withdraw an appearance by notice under \$E(1) of this regulation, the attorney wishing to withdraw an appearance shall file a motion to withdraw. Except if the motion is made in an open hearing with the client present, the motion shall be accompanied by the client's written consent to the withdrawal or the moving attorney's certificate that notice has been mailed to the client at least 5 days prior to the filing of the motion, informing the client of the attorney's intention to move for withdrawal and advising the client to have another attorney enter an appearance or to notify the Commission in writing or through CompHub of the client's intention to proceed in proper person. The Commission may deny the motion if withdrawal of the appearance would cause undue delay, prejudice, or injustice.

(3) An attorney whose appearance has been entered on behalf of a party to a claim remains the attorney of record for the party to that claim unless the appearance was terminated under \$E(1) or (2) of this regulation.

R. KARL AUMANN Chairman

# Maryland Workers' Compensation Commissioners' Meeting Minutes Thursday, August 13, 2020

Call to Order: Chairman R. Karl Aumann called the meeting to order at 9:15 a.m.

**Present:** Chairman Aumann and Commissioners Kathleen Evans, James Forrester, Allan Kittleman, Morrisann Martin, Howard Metz, Ju Oh and Maureen Quinn established a quorum. Staff members attending were Mary Ahearn, Steven Jones, Scott Curtis, Amy Lackington, and Stacey L. Roig, Secretary of the Commission.

Closed Session: At 9:17 a.m., upon motion of Commissioner Forrester and second of Commissioner Evans and upon unanimous vote, pursuant to GP §§3-305(13), LE §§9-402, 9-403, 9-405, 9-406 and 9-1104, and COMAR 14.09.13.12, the Commission entered a closed session for the purpose of discussing self-insured employers' financial information.

Steven Jones, Director of the Insurance, Compliance & Regulation Division reported that Greater Baltimore Medical Center has requested an increase in retention effective August 1, 2020. After discussion and a motion from Commissioner Quinn with a second from Commissioner Metz, and unanimous consent, the motion was approved.

The meeting was reopened at 9:20 a.m., upon motion of Commissioner Quinn and second of Commissioner Forrester and upon unanimous vote.

The meeting reconvened at 9:32 am on an open meeting line allowing the public to attend the remainder of the meeting.

**Present:** Chairman Aumann and Commissioners Kathleen Evans, James Forrester, Allan Kittleman, Morrisann Martin, Howard Metz, Ju Oh, Maureen Quinn, Delia Schadt and Tracey Parker-Warren. Staff members attending were Mary Ahearn, Jerome Reichmister, M.D., Scott Curtis, Amy Lackington, and Stacey L. Roig, Secretary of the Commission.

The Chairman reminded all outside guests who were attending via telephone to please mute their phones and reminded them that this is a meeting of the Commissioners and not an open forum for questions, comments, etc.

A list of guests who called in to this Open Meeting is attached to the Minutes.

**Approval of Minutes:** The Minutes of the July 23, 2020 Commissioners' Meeting were reviewed and, upon motion of Commissioner Quinn and second of Commissioner Metz, the Minutes were approved with a unanimous vote.

**Chairman's Report:** The Chairman discussed the excellent progress of the reduction of the backlog of cases, in particular, the over 30 days cases. The Chairman stated that the Commissioners will see a scheduling change beginning in November 2020 with appointments beginning at 9:00am and ending at 1:00 p.m. with no break, except to sanitize. This will reduce the number of hearings by three per docket per day. However, the backlog is under control enough at this time that the loss of hearings will not impact the backlog to the negative. Virtual hearing dockets will continue and are here to stay. The Chairman discussed the SAWCA Conference in July and the success of the structure of the conference and the sessions. The IAIABC will also host a virtual conference in September. The Commission's

participation will be limited due to cost. Committee Chairs for the IA from the Commission will be permitted to attend. The budget situation for the State is still critical and cuts in budgets are going to be necessary. The Chairman is working with the Governor's Office and DBM because the Commission is independently funded and any cuts to our budget have no impact on the general fund. He is hoping that the Commission can be excused from furlough days and other cuts. The enterprise modernization continues to move forward at an excellent pace.

# Old Business: No Report

**New Business:** Commissioner Forrester asked for input from the Commissioners for a claims litigation meeting on August 20<sup>th</sup> in which Commissioner Forrester will be participating. If there are any suggestions for topics to be discussed or information to be shared, please pass it along to Commissioner Forrester before August 20<sup>th</sup>. Commissioner Quinn asked that Commissioner Forrester share the gratitude of the Commission for all of the work that has been done during the pandemic and the spirit of cooperation shown by all.

**Medical Alerts:** Dr. Reichmister will be presenting a limited anatomy training session on the knee to the Commissioners and staff immediately following this meeting on MS Teams.

**Adjournment:** Upon a motion by Commissioner Forrester and second by Commissioner Evans and upon unanimous vote, the meeting was adjourned at 9:48 a.m.:

R. Karl Aumann, Chairman

# Maryland Workers' Compensation Commissioners' Meeting Minutes Thursday, August 27, 2020

Call to Order: Chairman R. Karl Aumann called the meeting to order at 9:27 a.m.

**Present:** Chairman Aumann and Commissioners Kathleen Evans, James Forrester, Allan Kittleman, Morrisann Martin, Howard Metz, Ju Oh, Maureen Quinn, Delia Schadt and Tracey Parker-Warren. Staff members attending were Mary Ahearn, Scott Curtis, Amy Lackington and Stacey L. Roig, Secretary of the Commission,

The Chairman reminded all outside guests who were attending via telephone to please mute their phones and reminded them that this is a meeting of the Commissioners and not an open forum for questions, comments, etc.

A list of guests who called in to this Open Meeting is attached to the Minutes.

**Approval of Minutes:** The Minutes of the August 13, 2020 Commissioners' Meeting were reviewed and, upon motion of Commissioner Parker-Warren and second of Commissioner Evans, the Minutes were approved with a unanimous vote.

**Chairman's Report:** The Chairman discussed the announcement that NCCI is recommending a 9.8% reduction in average premium, which is excellent news for insurers and policy holders. The Chairman also announced that the backlog is now approaching normal volume levels. Beltsville has always maintained the highest volume and the pandemic did not change that situation. All dockets have been reviewed for any opportunity to add dockets to Beltsville and adjustments have been made by Amy Lackington. Several new dockets were added to Beltsville over the next two (2) months. November will be a new schedule format to streamline the dockets. The Annual Report is being prepared and is on schedule to be issued timely. The Chairman had no new information regarding the MWCEA and any plans for the 2020 conference. Decisions will be made and finalized soon. The Chairman reported that remote working has been successful and continues to be effective. He expressed thanks to all of the staff for their hard work from all locations to keep the work flowing smoothly. Commissioner Quinn commented that Jim MacDonald has been especially helpful with all parties in the virtual hearing and the uploading of documents. Commissioner Quinn also commented that many times the parties to the case have not been prepared properly for a virtual environment and Jim has been very helpful getting people online, even with extremely short notice.

**Old Business:** Commissioner Evans asked about the expected date for the exclusive use of the new Settlement Worksheet. Mary Ahearn responded that the new worksheet has been posted but, the Commission allows approximately 30 days for the parties to begin using it exclusively. Commissioner Martin reported that the contact tracing program does not have a dropdown box for LaVale (Allegheny County). Mary Ahearn will report the issue to IT to correct.

#### New Business: No Report

**Medical Alerts:** Chairman Aumann thanked Dr. Reichmister for all his hard work on the training session that he provided on August 13, 2020. Dr. Reichmister reminded everyone to please be safe, be cautious, wear masks, use frequent hand washing, social distance and stay home as much as possible. Dr. Reichmister also provided several medical alerts of interest to the Commissioners.

**Adjournment:** Upon a motion by Commissioner Forrester and second by Commissioner Evans and upon unanimous vote, the meeting was adjourned at 9:50 a.m.:

R. Karl Aumann, Chairman

### Public Attendees to Commissioners' Meeting Thursday, August 27, 2020

Name

Angela Garcia Kozlowski, Esq

Antonio R. Lopez Douglas M. Gross, Esq. Law Firm, Company or Other Affiliation Franklin & Prokopic

Schenker, Krause & Lopez (employees of Zurich American Insurance) Law Offices of Douglas M. Gross LLC

# Maryland Workers' Compensation Commissioners' Meeting Minutes Thursday, September 10, 2020

Call to Order: Chairman R. Karl Aumann called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m.

**Present:** Chairman Aumann and Commissioners Kathleen Evans, James Forrester, Allan Kittleman, Morrisann Martin, Howard Metz, Ju Oh, Maureen Quinn, Delia Schadt and Tracey Parker-Warren. Staff members attending were Mary Ahearn, Scott Curtis, Amy Lackington and Stacey L. Roig, Secretary of the Commission,

The Chairman reminded all outside guests who were attending via telephone to please mute their phones and reminded them that this is a meeting of the Commissioners and not an open forum for questions, comments, etc.

A list of guests who called in to this Open Meeting is attached to the Minutes.

**Approval of Minutes:** The Minutes of the August 27, 2020 Commissioners' Meeting were reviewed and, upon motion of Commissioner Metz and second of Commissioner Quinn, the Minutes were approved with a unanimous vote.

**Chairman's Report:** The Chairman Reported that the Commission is moving ahead with the change for dockets beginning in November 2020. Dockets will run from 9:00 am until 1:00 pm with no mid-day break. The Chairman thanked all those in the Commission who worked on the adjustments to the dockets. The Chairman announced that Retired Commissioner Jeffrey Weinberg will be joining the Warnken law firm, removing him as an eligible Recall Commissioner. The Chairman asked the Commissioners to try to keep last minute requests to take leave to a minimum, given the shrinking pool of Recall Commissioners. The Chairman had no updates on the budget. The Chairman also reported that there is discussion around a possible presumption bill due to COVID-19. Commissioner Forrester commented that a draft copy of a possible presumption bill was posted on the MD Association for Justice website. The Chairman asked, Scott Curtis, Principal Counsel, to discuss a recent opinion published by the MD Court of Special Appeals in *Ashley N. Downer v. Baltimore County, Maryland*. The Chairman reported that the 106th IAIABC Convention opened this week as a virtual event and will extend through the end of the month. Stacey Roig will attend as Chair of the Regulation Committee along with Mary Ahearn, a former President of the IAIABC and the Chairman as Chair of the International Committee. The SAWCA 2020 All Committee Conference will also be a virtual event taking place in November.

#### Old Business: No Report

**New Business:** Commissioner Evans raised some questions regarding the scheduling of vocational rehab special hearings. The Commissioners discussed their thoughts. The Chairman asked that the staff look at some possible procedures and report back at a future date. The Commissioners all agreed that the QR scan for contact tracing is great and thanked Kevin Nauman (CIO) for putting it together so quickly

#### Medical Alerts: No Report

**Adjournment:** Upon a motion by Commissioner Forrester and second by Commissioner Martin and upon unanimous vote, the meeting was adjourned at 9:55 a.m.

R. Karl Aumann, Chairman

# Public Attendees to Commissioners' Meeting September 10, 2020

Name

Antonio R. Lopez Douglas M. Gross, Esq. Steven J. Meltzer

# Law Firm, Company or Other Affiliation

Schenker, Krause & Lopez (employees of Zurich Law Offices of Douglas M. Gross LLC Schenker, Krause & Lopez

# Maryland Workers' Compensation Commissioners' Meeting Minutes Thursday, October 08, 2020

Call to Order: Chairman R. Karl Aumann called the meeting to order at 9:15 a.m.

**Present:** Chairman Aumann and Commissioners Kathleen Evans, James Forrester, Allan Kittleman, Morrisann Martin, Howard Metz, Ju Oh and Tracey Parker-Warren established a quorum. Staff members attending were Mary Ahearn, Steven Jones, Scott Curtis, Amy Lackington, Jerome Reichmister, M.D. and Stacey L. Roig, Secretary of the Commission.

Closed Session: At 9:18 a.m., upon motion of Commissioner Metz and second of Commissioner Evans and upon unanimous vote, pursuant to GP §§3-305(13), LE §§9-402, 9-403, 9-405, 9-406 and 9-1104, and COMAR 14.09.13.12, the Commission entered a closed session for the purpose of discussing self-insured employers' financial information.

Steven Jones, Director of the Insurance, Compliance & Regulation Division reported that LifeBridge Health has requested an additional subsidiary in their self-insurance program. They are requesting to add Grace Medical Center, formerly known as Bob Secours Hospital effective November 1, 2019. After discussion and a motion from Commissioner Martin with a second from Commissioner Forrester, and unanimous consent, the motion was approved.

Mr. Jones also provided information regarding Alliance Coal.

The meeting was reopened at 9:24 a.m., upon motion of Commissioner Martin and second of Commissioner Evans and upon unanimous vote.

The meeting reconvened at 9:30 am on an open meeting line allowing the public to attend the remainder of the meeting.

**Present:** Chairman Aumann and Commissioners Kathleen Evans, James Forrester, Allan Kittleman, Morrisann Martin, Howard Metz, Ju Oh, Delia Schadt and Tracey Parker-Warren. Staff members attending were Mary Ahearn, Jerome Reichmister, M.D., Scott Curtis, Amy Lackington, and Stacey L. Roig, Secretary of the Commission.

The Chairman reminded all outside guests who were attending via telephone to please mute their phones and reminded them that this is a meeting of the Commissioners and not an open forum for questions, comments, etc.

A list of guests who called in to this Open Meeting is attached to the Minutes.

**Approval of Minutes:** The Minutes of the September 10, 2020 Commissioners' Meeting were reviewed and, upon motion of Commissioner Evans and second of Commissioner Metz, the Minutes were approved with a unanimous vote.

**Chairman's Report:** The Chairman Requested that the Commissioners review certain claims to determine if they are actual COVID-19 cases. The Commission created the list by capturing claims with the word "COVID" and/or "Coronavirus" in the description; however, the cases were not always related to COVID or exposure to the virus. The Chairman also discussed possible legislation in the next legislative session. The Budget Advisory Committee met to review the proposed budget for FY2022.

The Committee's main focus was to be certain of adequate funding to complete CompHub and go live by January 1, 2021. The Commission plans to run the old and new systems side-by-side for at least a year to provide a phase-in approach to the crossover to the new system. The Chairman reported that a waiver has been requested to fill the two vacant Commissioner Assistant positions. He also asked the Commissioners to begin to review requests for continuances more closely so that the Commission is not continuing too many cases unnecessarily, thus adding to the backlog.

# Old Business: No Report

**New Business:** Commissioner Forrester discussed a Bethlehem Steel hearing loss case and the Chairman reminded all of the Commissioners that Commissioner Forrester will continue to handle all of the Bethlehem Steel hearing loss cases.

Medical Alerts: Dr. Reichmister provided several medical alerts of interest to the Commissioners.

**Adjournment:** Upon a motion by Commissioner Forrester and second by Commissioner Martin and upon unanimous vote, the meeting was adjourned at 10:04 a.m.:

R. Karl Aumann, Chairman

# Maryland Workers' Compensation Commissioners' Meeting Minutes Thursday, October 22, 2020

Call to Order: Chairman R. Karl Aumann called the meeting to order at 9:15 a.m.

**Present:** Chairman Aumann and Commissioners Kathleen Evans, James Forrester, Allan Kittleman, Morrisann Martin, Howard Metz, Ju Oh, Maureen Quinn, Delia Schadt and Tracey Parker-Warren established a quorum.

Staff members attending were Mary Ahearn, Steven Jones, Scott Curtis, Jerome Reichmister, M.D. and Stacey L. Roig, Secretary of the Commission.

Closed Session: At 9:18 a.m., upon motion of Commissioner Martin and second of Commissioner Evans and upon unanimous vote, pursuant to GP §§3-305(13), LE §§9-402, 9-403, 9-405, 9-406 and 9-1104, and COMAR 14.09.13.12, the Commission entered a closed session for the purpose of discussing self-insured employers' financial information.

Steven Jones, Director of the Insurance, Compliance & Regulation Division reported that Yellow Transportation has requested a decrease in security deposit. After discussion and a motion from Commissioner Quinn with a second from Commissioner Martin, and unanimous consent, the motion was approved.

Mr. Jones also reported that Peninsula Regional Medical Center has requested that McCready Foundation, Inc. be added as a subsidiary to their self-insurance program. After discussion and a motion by Commissioner Forrester and a second by Commissioner Metz, and unanimous consent, the motion was approved.

The meeting was reopened at 9:29 a.m., upon motion of Commissioner Parker-Warren and second of Commissioner Evans and upon unanimous vote.

The meeting reconvened at 9:30 am on an open meeting line allowing the public to attend the remainder of the meeting.

**Present:** Chairman Aumann and Commissioners Kathleen Evans, James Forrester, Allan Kittleman, Morrisann Martin, Howard Metz, Ju Oh, Maureen Quinn, Delia Schadt and Tracey Parker-Warren.

Staff members attending were Mary Ahearn, Jerome Reichmister, M.D., Scott Curtis, and Stacey L. Roig, Secretary of the Commission.

The Chairman reminded all outside guests who were attending via telephone to please mute their phones and reminded them that this is a meeting of the Commissioners and not an open forum for questions, comments, etc.

A list of guests who called in to this Open Meeting is attached to the Minutes.

**Approval of Minutes:** The Minutes of the October 8, 2020 Commissioners' Meeting were reviewed and, upon motion of Commissioner Metz and second of Commissioner Forrester, the Minutes were approved with a unanimous vote.

**Chairman's Report:** The Chairman reported that a waiver for the current hiring freeze has been approved for two Commissioner Assistant positions. The hiring process has begun with the positions listed on the Department of Budget & Management website, which closes on November 3, 2020, and remote interviews will take place after the initial application review process is completed. The Chairman urged the Commissioners to put the word out if they know of someone who would be a good candidate.

The Budget Advisory Committee has signed off on the proposed budget for FY 2022. The budget will be sent to the Governor on December 1, 2020. The Chairman also reported that the

Over 30-day cases are starting to back-up again. He asked the Commissioners' to review requests for continuances carefully before automatically approving the request.

The Chairman reminded the Commissioners that the IT Security trainings are required for all and monthly completion is mandated by the Office of the Governor. Please complete the online trainings in a timely manner.

### Old Business: No Report

**New Business:** Commissioner Metz discussed the calculation of attorney's fees. The Chairman suggested that Commissioner Metz and Principal Counsel, Scott Curtis determine and present recommendations to be discussed by the Commissioners at a later date.

Medical Alerts: Dr. Reichmister provided several medical alerts of interest to the Commissioners.

**Adjournment:** Upon a motion by Commissioner Forrester and second by Commissioner Parker-Warren and upon unanimous vote, the meeting was adjourned at 10:02a.m.:

R. Karl Aumann, Chairman

# Public Attendees to Commissioners' Meeting October 22, 2020

Name	Law Firm, Company or Other Affiliation
	Schenker, Krause & Lopez (employees of Zurich
Antonio R. Lopez	* American Insurance)
Douglas M. Gross, Esq.	* Law Offices of Douglas M. Gross LLC

# Maryland Workers' Compensation Commissioners' Meeting Minutes Thursday, November 12, 2020

Call to Order: Chairman R. Karl Aumann called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m.

**Present:** Chairman Aumann and Commissioners Kathleen Evans, James Forrester, Allan Kittleman, Morrisann Martin, Howard Metz, Ju Oh, Maureen Quinn, Delia Schadt and Tracey Parker-Warren

Staff members attending were Mary Ahearn, Amy Lackington, Scott Curtis, Jerome Reichmister, M.D. and Stacey L. Roig, Secretary of the Commission.

The Chairman reminded all outside guests who were attending via telephone to please mute their phones and reminded them that this is a meeting of the Commissioners and not an open forum for questions, comments, etc.

A list of guests who called in to this Open Meeting is attached to the Minutes.

**Approval of Minutes:** The Minutes of the October 22, 2020 Commissioners' Meeting were reviewed and, upon motion of Commissioner Parker-Warren and second of Commissioner Quinn, the Minutes were approved with a unanimous vote.

**Chairman's Report:** The Chairman reported that it has been eight months since the last in-person meeting of the Commissioners and the decision to return to a virtual meeting was made last minute in accordance with the Governor's recent comments. The Chairman reminded the Commissioners of the importance of social distancing, frequent handwashing and always wearing masks. He asked that the Commissioners not allow furniture to be moved in the hearing rooms as the furniture has been placed for precise social distancing The Chairman also thanked the Security Officers for the extra steps that they are taking on to keep the hearing sites cleaned and sanitized. If we are not diligent, we may have to eliminate in-person hearings, which is not something that we want to do if it can be avoided. The one-hour lunch break has been eliminated from the schedule for the next few months. The Chairman asked the Commissioners to provide feedback to him on how that is working out and if it should be continued. The Chairman announced that Budget hearings will be virtual for the 2021 legislative session and no dates have been set at this point. The Chairman also reported that the virtual conferences have worked better than expected, although not to the level of in-person conferences. Several members of the Commission have been involved with the conferences to continue to network with our colleagues. The Chairman also reported that the backlog is not too bad but asked the Commissioners to continue to be diligent in carefully reviewing requests for postponements and continuances. He asked that the Commissioners encourage the parties to advise the Commission as soon as possible when issues are resolved so that another case can be set in that space on the docket. Video hearings are continuing and are being scheduled as quickly as possible. COVID case reviews have been submitted by most of the Commissioners and the Chairman asked that any case reviews that have not been submitted be sent to him as soon as possible.

**Old Business:** Mary Ahearn reported that the last of the changes to the uploading of documents have been completed. It is now possible to designate the party to whom the documents or exhibits belong, which should eliminate much of the confusion. Commissioner Martin commented that uploading exhibits the day of the hearing is still a problem. She asked that a Notice be added to the Commission webpage to

remind everyone to timely file their exhibits and not wait until the last minute to upload and provide them to the other parties in the claim.

**New Business:** Commissioner Forrester reported that Multi-Specialty now has a neurologist on staff. He also reported that Premium Orthopedics is performing functional capacity evaluations without approval by the insurers and refusing to share results until paid for the evaluation. Commissioner Forrester also suggested that when the parties to an Order Nisi hearing come to an arrangement on the issues, emails be sent to advise everyone that the hearing will not go forward. Currently, there is no way to remove the issue from the docket in the system.

Medical Alerts: Dr. Reichmister provided several medical alerts of interest to the Commissioners.

**Adjournment:** Upon a motion by Commissioner Forrester and second by Commissioner Martin and upon unanimous vote, the meeting was adjourned at 10:07a.m.:

R. Karl Aumann, Chairman

# Public Attendees to Commissioners' Meeting November 12, 2020

Name	Law Firm, Company or Other Affiliation
Cindy L. Armstrong, Esquire	* Erlandson, Vernon & Daney, LLC
Matthew LaFontaine, Esq.	* Cohen, Snyder, Eisenberg & Katzenberg P.A.
Paul G. Donoghue	* Rollins, Smalkin, Richards & Mackie, L.L.C.
Theresa M Brennan	* CorVel Corporation   Baltimore
Jacqueline Proctor	* Workers' Compensation Commission
Nancy Allen	* Workers' Compensation Commission
Christine Krone	* Schwarts, Metz & Wise

# Maryland Workers' Compensation Commissioners' Meeting Minutes Thursday, December 10, 2020

Call to Order: Chairman R. Karl Aumann called the meeting to order at 9:15 a.m.

**Present:** Chairman Aumann and Commissioners Kathleen Evans, Allan Kittleman, Howard Metz, Ju Oh, Maureen Quinn, Delia Schadt and Tracey Parker-Warren established a quorum.

Staff members attending were Mary Ahearn, Steven Jones, Amy Lackington, Scott Curtis, and Stacey L. Roig, Secretary of the Commission.

# Closed Session: At 9:17 a.m., upon motion of Commissioner Parker-Warren and second of Commissioner Metz and upon unanimous vote, pursuant to GP §§3-305(13), LE §§9-402, 9-403, 9-405, 9-406 and 9-1104, and COMAR 14.09.13.12, the Commission entered a closed session for the purpose of discussing self-insured employers' financial information.

Steven Jones, Director of the Insurance, Compliance & Regulation Division reported that Johns Hopkins Health System (JHHS) requires an increase in security deposit. After discussion and a motion from Commissioner Quinn with a second from Commissioner Parker-Warren, and unanimous consent, the motion was approved.

Mr. Jones also reported that MGM Resorts International requires an increase to the security deposit. After discussion and a motion by Commissioner Metz and a second by Commissioner Evans, and unanimous consent, the motion was approved.

# The meeting was reopened at 9:24 a.m., upon motion of Commissioner Quinn and second of Commissioner Parker-Warren and upon unanimous vote.

# The meeting reconvened at 9:30 am on an open meeting line allowing the public to attend the remainder of the meeting.

**Present:** Chairman Aumann and Commissioners Kathleen Evans, James Forrester, Allan Kittleman, Morrisann Martin, Howard Metz, Ju Oh, Maureen Quinn, Delia Schadt and Tracey Parker-Warren.

Staff members attending were Mary Ahearn, Jerome Reichmister, M.D., Amy Lackington, Scott Curtis, and Stacey L. Roig, Secretary of the Commission.

The Chairman reminded all outside guests who were attending via telephone to please mute their phones and reminded them that this is a meeting of the Commissioners and not an open forum for questions, comments, etc.

A list of guests who called in to this Open Meeting is attached to the Minutes.

**Approval of Minutes:** The Minutes of the November 12, 2020 Commissioners' Meeting were reviewed and, upon motion of Commissioner Martin and second of Commissioner Metz, the Minutes were approved with a unanimous vote.

**Chairman's Report:** The Chairman reported that it is December and COVID is flaring again in our state and, the continued diligence of the Commissioners and staff will continue to keep in-person hearings possible. The Chairman reminded the Commissioners that masks are required and are to be worn at all times. The Chairman also complimented the Security Officers for the work that they are doing to keep the hearing sites sanitized and enforcing the COVID safety protocols. He asked the Commissioners to continue to support the efforts of the Security Officers.

The Chairman asked Mary Ahearn, CEO, to provide an update on the Enterprise Modernization project. Ms. Ahearn reported that the project is moving forward with a February target date for the first rollout of CompHub. The multi-factor authentication process has some issues in Bizagi, but the rollout target is still on track. The Chairman reported that legislative hearings will be starting in January and all testimony will be virtual with no testimony in person. The House and Senate Budget Subcommittees will be meeting together this year and taking testimony on budgets in one session, which will streamline the process for the committees and the agencies. Legislation regarding COVID presumptions is expected with the focus on public safety; however, there has been some talk about adding healthcare and retail workers. The Chairman discussed COVID cases and the Commission's mission to continue to look at facts and circumstances for each case and, especially with COVID cases that differ so much from one case to another. University of Baltimore School of Law has students ready to work with claimants in Medical Only cases and several Commissioners will be working with the school to help get the program up and running. The Chairman asked Commissioner Metz to comment on his proposed draft to restructure attorney's fees. Scott Curtis, Principal Counsel commented that the proposed changes will be addressed in the eight-year required review of agency regulations, which will be coming up this year. The Chairman also reported that the Commissioners' Meeting on December 17th will include all employees of the Commission. The Chairman also noted that the snow policy without schools in session is undecided at this time; however, a decision on a policy regarding the cancellation of hearings due to weather will be made soon.

# Old Business: No Report

**New Business:** Commissioner Martin announced that she will be taking the position of Kids' Chance Liaison with the retirement of Commissioner Lauren Godwin. Commissioner Martin announced a golf outing in support of Kids' Chance to be held on July 19, 2021 at Rocky Point and she asked the Commissioner to attend.

**Medical Alerts:** Dr. Reichmister reminded everyone to continue with safety precautions of social distancing, washing hands frequently, wearing masks and avoiding crowds. Dr. Reichmister also provided several medical alerts of interest to the Commissioners.

**Adjournment:** Upon a motion by Commissioner Forrester and second by Commissioner Martin and upon unanimous vote, the meeting was adjourned at 9:58a.m.:

R. Karl Aumann, Chairman

# Public Attendees to Commissioners' Meeting December 10, 2020

Name	Law Firm, Company or Other Affiliation
	Schenker, Krause & Lopez (employees of Zurich
Antonio R. Lopez	<ul> <li>* American Insurance)</li> </ul>
	Schenker, Krause & Lopez (employees of Zurich
Mark T. Krause	* American Insurance)
Brian W. Rollyson	* Berman, Sobin, Gross, Feldman & Darby

# Maryland Workers' Compensation Commissioners' Meeting Minutes Thursday, December 17, 2020

Call to Order: Chairman R. Karl Aumann called the meeting to order at 9:15 a.m.

**Present:** Chairman Aumann and Commissioners Kathleen Evans, James Forrester, Allan Kittleman, Morrisann Martin, Howard Metz, Ju Oh, Maureen Quinn, Delia Schadt and Tracey Parker-Warren established a quorum.

Staff members attending were Mary Ahearn, Steven Jones, Amy Lackington and Stacey L. Roig, Secretary of the Commission.

Closed Session: At 9:17 a.m., upon motion of Commissioner Martin and second of Commissioner Quinn and upon unanimous vote, pursuant to GP §§3-305(13), LE §§9-402, 9-403, 9-405, 9-406 and 9-1104, and COMAR 14.09.13.12, the Commission entered a closed session for the purpose of discussing self-insured employers' financial information.

Steven Jones, Director of the Insurance, Compliance & Regulation Division reported that Diakon Lutheran Social Ministries has requested an increase in retention. After discussion and a motion from Commissioner Quinn with a second from Commissioner Forrester, and unanimous consent, the motion was approved.

Mr. Jones also reported that The Archdiocese of Baltimore requires an increase to the security deposit. After discussion and a motion by Commissioner Metz and a second by Commissioner Evans, and unanimous consent, the motion was approved.

Finally, Mr. Jones also reported that Sheehy Auto Stores will be leaving the self-insurance program effective July 1, 2021.

The meeting was reopened at 9:25 a.m., upon motion of Commissioner Parker-Warren and second of Commissioner Martin and upon unanimous vote.

The meeting reconvened at 9:30 am on an open meeting line allowing the public to attend the remainder of the meeting.

**Present:** Chairman Aumann and Commissioners Kathleen Evans, James Forrester, Allan Kittleman, Morrisann Martin, Howard Metz, Ju Oh, Maureen Quinn, Delia Schadt and Tracey Parker-Warren.

Staff members attending were Mary Ahearn, Jerome Reichmister, M.D., Amy Lackington, Scott Curtis, Kevin Naumann, Theresa Cornish, David Jones and Stacey L. Roig, Secretary of the Commission.

The Chairman reminded all outside guests who were attending via telephone to please mute their phones and reminded them that this is a meeting of the Commissioners and not an open forum for questions, comments, etc.

A list of guests who called in to this Open Meeting is attached to the Minutes.

**Approval of Minutes:** The Minutes of the December 10, 2020 Commissioners' Meeting were reviewed and, upon motion of Commissioner Quinn and second of Commissioner Evans, the Minutes were approved with a unanimous vote.

**Chairman's Report:** The Chairman announced that all WCC employees were invited to attend the meeting to give everyone a chance to briefly meet together virtually, in lieu of the usual holiday celebration at the Commission. The Chairman offered his thanks for the work that everyone has been doing under the very difficult circumstances of the past nine months. He expressed his pride in the work product of the team in keeping the Commission, the only adjudicating agency in the state, operating efficiently. The Chairman then turned the meeting over to Mary Ahearn, CEO; David Jones, CFO; Theresa Cornish, COO and Kevin Naumann, CIO to say a few words to the attendees.

Mary Ahearn reminded everyone that Governor Hogan designated Christmas Eve as a holiday for all state employees. Ms. Ahearn also announced a 2% COLA increase for all employees effective January 1, 2021. Ms. Ahearn also presented and congratulated those employees celebrating a milestone anniversary in service to the State of MD. (Please see attached list for details.)

Theresa Cornish thanked everyone for their work and expressed her appreciation for every employee's part in facing a year of challenges and opportunities. Ms. Cornish is looking forward to being together again soon.

David Jones expressed his gratitude to all employees, with special kudos to those employees who have carried out their duties in the office. There are many workers at the Commission who are working on the COVID front lines and do not receive special discounts or see their stories on the news. Mr. Jones expressed special thanks to those workers.

Kevin Naumann expressed his thanks to the Information Technology team, which was asked to make very fast changes to applications last March, so that the agency could stay on track in a remote working world. They were tasked with learning new software and applications and then training others when they had just learned the software themselves. Mr. Naumann thanked everyone on the team for their continued hard work.

The Chairman wrapped up his report with a reminder that the coronavirus pandemic is not over, and everyone must remain vigilant, wear masks and practice social distancing. The amount of work has been tremendous, and everyone has been an asset to the Commission and is doing a great job.

# Old Business: No Report

**New Business:** Commissioner Forrester announced two workers' compensation community retirements. **Medical Alerts:** Dr. Reichmister reminded everyone to continue with safety precautions of social distancing, washing hands frequently, wearing masks and avoiding crowds.

Happy Holidays to Everyone!

**Adjournment:** Upon a motion by Commissioner Forrester and second by Commissioner Martin and upon unanimous vote, the meeting was adjourned at 10:02a.m.:

R. Karl Aumann, Chairman

# WCC MILESTONE ANNIVERSARIES 2020

# <u>5 Years</u>

Jeffrey Randall Janet Vanderpuije Quianna Jackson Brandon Clark Meenakshi Gagendiran Kathleen Evans Tracey Parker-Warren

# <u>10 Years</u>

Danyela Vick Francis Morgan Laura Andrews

# **Twenty Years**

Olethia Bowman Valeriy Karpov Derry Pemberton

# **Twenty-Five Years**

Tonia Carter Kelly Stesch Steven Jones

# **Thirty Years** Cherry Tate

# Thirty-Five Years Naomi Edwards

Name

Antonio R. Lopez Joan P. Adelman Cindy L. Armstrong, Esquire Law Firm, Company or Other Affiliation

Schenker, Krause & Lopez IWIF/Chesapeake Employers' Insurance Company Erlandson, Vernon & Daney, LLC